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AGENDA

ORDINARY MEETING OF COUNCIL
FOR
WEDNESDAY 24 JUNE 2020
TO BE HELD AT COBRAM CIVIC CENTRE, PUNT ROAD COBRAM
COMMENCING AT 5:00PM

RECORDING
Consistent with section 72 of our Meeting Procedures Local Law, Council officers have been
authorised to record the public session of this meeting using an audio recording device.

LIVE STREAMING

Council meetings will now be lived streamed, allowing those interested to view proceedings
without attending the meeting. This gives access to Council decisions and debate and enables
residents to comply with COVID19 stay at home directions

1. CALLING TO ORDER - CEO

2.  PRAYER

Almighty God we humbly ask you to guide our deliberations for the welfare and benefit of the
Moira Shire and its people whom we serve.

Amen
3. ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF COUNTRY

We, the Moira Shire Council, would like to acknowledge the traditional owners of the land upon
which we meet and pay our respects to their Elders both past and present.

4. APOLOGIES & REQUESTS FOR LEAVE OF ABSENCE

5. DECLARATION UNDER ACTS, REGULATIONS, CODES OR LOCAL LAWS
6. DECLARATION OF ANY INTEREST OR CONFLICT OF INTEREST

7. CONFIRMATION OF MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING

Recommendation:  “That the minutes of the Ordinary Council Meeting held on Wednesday,
27 May 2020, as prepared, be confirmed.”
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ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING
WEDNESDAY 24 JUNE 2020

8. COUNCILLOR REPORTS

8.1 COUNCILLOR REPORT - CR PETER MANSFIELD - MDA REGION 2
GENERAL MEETING 4

9. OFFICER REPORTS FOR DETERMINATION

9.1 OFFICE OF CEO

9.1.1 GRANT - SPORTIES HEALTH AND FITNESS 5

9.2 CORPORATE

9.2.1 2020/21 RENEWAL INSURANCE 7
9.2.2 ASSEMBLIES OF COUNCIL 10
9.2.3 MOIRA SHIRE COUNCIL BUDGET 2020/21 12
9.24 STRATEGIC RESOURCE PLAN 2020 - 2024 87

9.3 COMMUNITY

9.3.1 C050/19 - DETAILED DESIGN OF YARRAWONGA LIBRARY, EVENTS
AND PERFORMANCE PRECINCT 101

9.4 INFRASTRUCTURE

9.4.1 C022/17 - PROVISION FOR ASSET MAINTENANCE PANEL - PART C,

F(B) AND H REFRESH 104
9.4.2 C061/19 - ANNUAL RURAL LINE MARKING PROGRAM 108
9.4.3 PETITION - SEALING OF INVERNESS ROAD, INVERGORDON 111

9.4.4 RETAIL POLICY FRAMEWORK FOR COBRAM AND YARRAWONGA 115

10. ACTION OFFICERS LIST

NIL

11. NOTICES OF MOTION

111 NOTICE OF MOTION: CR PETER MANSFIELD 118

12. PETITIONS AND JOINT LETTERS

NIL

13. COUNCIL SEAL

NIL
14. GENERAL BUSINESS 119
15. QUESTIONS FROM PUBLIC GALLERY 120
16. MEETING ADJOURNMENT 121
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ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING
WEDNESDAY 24 JUNE 2020

17. CONFIDENTIAL BUSINESS
18. URGENT GENERAL CONFIDENTIAL BUSINESS

19. CLOSE OF MEETING
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COUNCILLOR REPORTS ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING
WEDNESDAY, 24 JUNE 2020

FILE NO: F/2088 ITEM NO: 8.1
2. ATHRIVING LOCAL ECONOMY

COUNCILLOR REPORT - CR PETER MANSFIELD - MDA REGION 2 GENERAL
MEETING

RECOMMENDATION

That Moira Shire Council support MDA Region 2 advocacy to the Murray Darling Association on
the following basis:

1. That the proposed 450 GL up water should not be sourced through buybacks of irrigation
entitlements in the southern connected basin.

2. If on farm efficiency programs are to be used to obtain the proposed 450GL then they
should be subject to an independent socio-economic analysis that proves that such
transfers do not cause negative socio-economic issues in regions where water is being
recovered.

3. That the passage of water intended for irrigation use downstream be minimised to flows that
do not cause environmental harm to river environs and in particular the Barmah National
Park and Barmah choke on the Murray River and the banks of the heritage listed Goulburn
River downstream of Eildon Weir.

Councillor Peter Mansfield

At last week’s MDA Region 2 meeting | was requested to provide the below motion from the
group for Council’s discussion and consideration. After discussion with the CEO a slightly
modified recommendation is listed above.

REGION 2 MOTION

1. That the Murray Darling Association does not support the proposed buyback of 450 gl of
water entitlements from the Murray Darling Basin.

2. That the passage of water intended for irrigation use downstream be minimised to flows that
do not cause Environmental harm to river environs and in particular the Barmah Choke on
the Murray River and the banks of the heritage listed Goulburn River downstream of Eildon
Weir.

3. If on farm efficiency programs are to be used to obtain the proposed 450gl then they should
be subject to an independent socio-economic analysis that proves that such transfers do not
cause negative socio-economic issues in regions where water is being recovered.

Attachments
Nil
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OFFICE OF CEO ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING
OFFICER REPORTS FOR DETERMINATION WEDNESDAY, 24 JUNE 2020

FILE NO: F20/06 ITEM NO: 9.1.1
1. AGREAT PLACE TO LIVE

GRANT - SPORTIES HEALTH AND FITNESS

RECOMMENDATION

That Council allocate up to $100,000 over two financial years ($50,000 p.a.) to subsidise the
provision of indoor heated pool facilities at the Barooga Sporties on the basis of an equivalent
contribution from Berrigan Shire and that the CEO condition the funding allocation to ensure it
meets Council’s intent of helping local residents re-establish an active lifestyle in a COVID19
recovery phase.

1. Executive Summary

This reports seeks Council endorsement for a budget allocation of two annual contributions
each of up to $50,000 for the Barooga Sports Club Ltd to subsidise community access to indoor
heated pool facilities..

Representative from the Barooga Sports Club Ltd (Sporties) have requested the following for
the next two years:

1. An annual operating grant of $100,000 (excluding GST) 50% of which would be provided by
the Berrigan Shire Council and 50% by the Moira Shire Council. This grant would be
specifically allocated to assist with the provision of the swimming pool operations and offset
part of the estimated $170,000 annual cost.

2. Support and assistance in securing additional funding for capital projects to maintain the
facility.

Under this model the community not for profit Barooga Sporties Group via their members, will
still be contributing over $400,000 over this two-year period.

2.  Background and Options

The emergence of the coronavirus has had a significant cost impact to the Sporties Group and
the longer term impact of the virus is still developing as they face an uncertain operating future
of limited capacity, travel restrictions and possible ongoing interruptions and temporary
closures.

With the health and fitness facility having 50,000 visits each year it is well patronized (with a
strong component of Moira Shire Residents) and will play an important role in the community re-
engaging an active lifestyle in a post COVID19 recovery phase.

Based on the data provided in Council’s Aquatic Strategy 2018-2027 the benchmark operating
cost of comparable facilities is more than $275,000 per annum and visitations comparable with
catchment populations around 39,000.

A two year subsidy will enable Sporties management, members and casual users to
demonstrate through visitations that the facility can operate at a level of subsidy that the
Sporties board is willing to absorb.

Councils capacity to support capital upgrades will be limited by cross border funding
arrangements and its own aguatic capital needs.

3. Financial Implications
The maximum amount will be $100,000 funded from Councils COVID19 recovery budget.
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OFFICE OF CEO ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING
OFFICER REPORTS FOR DETERMINATION WEDNESDAY, 24 JUNE 2020

FILE NO: F20/06 ITEM NO: 9.1.1
1. AGREAT PLACE TO LIVE

GRANT - SPORTIES HEALTH AND FITNESS (cont'd)

4, Risk Management

Risk is mitigated by the Barooga Sports Club Ltd being responsible for the overall ongoing cost
of the Sporties Health and Fitness Centre swimming pool operation and ongoing operation and
control of the Centre.

5. Internal and External Consultation

Meetings have been held with representatives from the Barooga Sporties and the Berrigan
Shire Council’s Mayor and General Manager. There is a substantial groundswell of community
support both sides of the river for the facility to remain open.

6. Regional Context
This facility is well patronized by Moira Shire residents and the broader regional community.

7.  Council Plan Strategy
A great place to live.

8. Legislative / Policy Implications
There are no legislative policy implications associated with this report

9. Environmental Impact
There are no environmental impact considerations associated with this report.

10. Conflict of Interest Considerations
There are no conflict of interest considerations associated with this report.

11. Conclusion

With Council’s endorsement of the recommendation Moira Shire residents and the larger
regional community will benefit by supporting this facility during a difficult transition period.

Attachments
Nil
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CORPORATE ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING
OFFICER REPORTS FOR DETERMINATION WEDNESDAY, 24 JUNE 2020

FILE NO: F19/494 ITEM NO: 9.2.1
4. A WELL RUN COUNCIL

2020/21 RENEWAL INSURANCE

RECOMMENDATION
That Council:

1. Place the 2020/21 Industrial Special Risks (ISR) Insurance with Jardine Lloyd Thompsons
Municipal Asset Protection Plan (JMAPP).

2. Authorise the Chief Executive Officer to sign the 2020/21 insurance renewal documents.

1. Executive Summary

Council appointed Landell Consulting in February 2020 to undertake a public tender on behalf
of Moira Shire Council and four other Victorian Councils for the provision of insurance broking
and risk management services.

One tender was received; however, it did not provide the best value solution for Council. The
tender received provided renewal premiums significant higher than in previous years and
beyond the available budget. As a result, the Landell tender was set aside.

Council’s current broker, Jardine Lloyd Thompson (JLT), provided renewal terms for Council’s
2020/21 insurance portfolio outside the Landell tender which are consistent with the current
portfolio and within next year’s proposed budget.

The premium for Industrial Special Risks insurance (ISR/Property insurance) requires a Council
resolution to accept.

2. Background and Options

Acting on behalf of Council, Landell Consulting advertised a public tender in February 2020 for
the 2020/21 insurance portfolios, broking and risk management services for five Victorian
Councils.

Four broking firms registered their Expression of Interest, however, only one tender was
submitted prior to the tender closing date of 6 March 2020.

As the tender did not provide an acceptable result, the tender was set aside and Jardine Lloyd
Thompson provided renewal terms for brokerage and Council’s insurance portfolio, which
includes:

ISR/Property Insurance,
Community Liability

Motor Vehicle

Cyber Liability

Councillors’ & Officers
Personal Accident & Travel
Commercial Crime
Aerodrome Operators
Contract Works

Plumbers Liability.

With the exception of the ISR/Property insurance, the premiums for all insurance types can be
accepted under Council’s Financial Delegations.
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CORPORATE ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING
OFFICER REPORTS FOR DETERMINATION WEDNESDAY, 24 JUNE 2020

FILE NO: F19/494 ITEM NO: 9.2.1
4. A WELL RUN COUNCIL

2020/21 RENEWAL INSURANCE (cont'd)

Council’s asset value for insurance purposes is estimated to be $169.5M in 2020/21.

3. Financial Implications

JLT has provided a renewal premium of $259,875, inclusive of GST and all charges for ISR
property insurance for 2020/21 which is an increase of $23,649 or 10% compared to last year’s
premium. This premium was provided in February 2020 and may be subject to change on final
renewal due to adjustments in Council’'s sum insured and the impact of global events including
the Covid 19 pandemic.

The increase in premium has been allowed for in the 2020/21 draft budget.

4, Risk Management

Adequate insurance forms a critical part of the fundamental risk management framework which
must be in place to protect Council and the community from incidents. Failure to have adequate
insurance in place at any time places Council and the community at significant risk from
incidents which could give rise to a property claim.

It is important that Council remains properly insured against the loss of community assets.

5. Internal and External Consultation

External consultation occurred through the public tender process. Internal consultation occurred
during the renewal process with a number of internal departments including Finance, Fleet
Management, Organisational Development, Assets & Construction, Fleet Management and
Information Services.

6. Regional Context

The subject matter of this report does not have any direct impact on issues of regional
significance.

7. Council Plan Strategy

The subject matter of this report supports the Council Plan Strategy to provide sound risk
management and governance.

8. Legislative / Policy Implications

Section 186 of the Local Government Act 1989 requires Council to conduct a public tender
process for any supply with a value of $150,000 or more. Council is compliant with the Act by
having appointed Landell Consulting to conduct a public tender on Council’s behalf.

In accordance with the Moira Shire Council Procurement Policy, a Council resolution is required
to accept any supply valued over $150,000.

9. Environmental Impact

The subject matter of this report does not have any direct environmental impacts other than
those related to the administrative function of Council.

10. Conflict of Interest Considerations
There are no council officer conflict of interest issues within this report.
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CORPORATE
OFFICER REPORTS FOR DETERMINATION

ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING

WEDNESDAY, 24 JUNE 2020

FILE NO: F19/494
4. A WELL RUN COUNCIL

ITEM NO: 9.2.1

2020/21 RENEWAL INSURANCE (cont'd)

11. Conclusion

The Industrial Special Risks insurance policy provides protection for over $169.5 million of
Council assets. While JIMAPP has provided an increased premium for ISR/Property insurance
for the 2020/21 year, the premium is within the expected budget range.

It is recommended that Council accept the offer of ISR/Property insurance from Jardine Lloyd
Thompson’s Municipal Assets Protection Plan (JMAPP) for 2020/21.

Attachments
Nil

Moira Shire Council
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CORPORATE ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING
OFFICER REPORTS FOR DETERMINATION WEDNESDAY, 24 JUNE 2020

FILE NO: F13/503 ITEM NO: 9.2.2
4. A WELL RUN COUNCIL

ASSEMBLIES OF COUNCIL

RECOMMENDATION

That Council receive and note the Record of Assemblies of Councillors.

1. Executive Summary

This report details the Assembly of Councillors for May 2020. This report is prepared in
accordance with the requirements of the section 80A of the Local Government Act 1989.

2. Background and Options
This report fulfills Council’s legislative obligation to report the matters considered and whether a

conflict of interest disclosure was made by a Councillor at:

¢ A meeting of an advisory committee where at least one Councillor is present; or

e A meeting, briefing or other activity where at least half of the Council and a member of
Council staff is present; and

o Where the matters considered may be subject to a decision of Council or exercise of a

function, duty or power of the Council that has been delegated to a person or committee.

Meeting Present at meeting Matters discussed Declaration
of
Interest(s)
Community Councillors: e Safety Strategy Action Nil
Safety Kevin Bourke Plan
Committee Marie Martin e Cobram Courthouse
6 May 2020 Advocacy Project
Staff: e Migrant Driver Project
Manager Community Development, e GV Roadsafe media
Georgia Hill campaign
Team Leader Community Services,
Jessica Widdop
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CORPORATE

OFFICER REPORTS FOR DETERMINATION

ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING
WEDNESDAY, 24 JUNE 2020

FILE NO: F13/503
4. A WELL RUN COUNCIL

ITEM NO: 9.2.2

ASSEMBLIES OF COUNCIL (cont'd)

Meeting Present at meeting Matters discussed Declaration
of
Interest(s)
Council Councillors: ¢ Numurkah Flood Nil
Briefing Libro Mustica Mitigation update
13 May 2020 | Peter Lawless e Rate/Revenue budget

John Beitzel
Kevin Bourke
Wendy Buck
Gary Cleveland
Ed Cox

Peter Mansfield
Marie Martin

Staff:

Chief Executive Officer,

Mark Henderson

General Manager Community,
Sally Rice

General Manager Corporate,
Simon Rennie

Manager Infrastructure,

Andrew Close

Manager Community Development,
Georgia Hill

Manager Economic Development,
Austin Ley

e Community
Strengthening Grants

¢ Hilltop Accommodation
Centre
Draft Recovery Plan

¢ Bundalong Bridge

e Resource Recovery
Centre Optimisation
Project

¢ Draft Agenda Review

3.  Conflict of Interest Considerations
There are no known officer conflict of interest issues to consider within this report.

4. Conclusion

The Assembly of Councillors records incorporated into this report are a true and accurate record
of all assemblies of Councillors reported during May 2020.

Attachments

Nil

Moira Shire Council
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CORPORATE ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING
OFFICER REPORTS FOR DETERMINATION WEDNESDAY, 24 JUNE 2020

FILE NO: F19/504 ITEM NO: 9.2.3
4. A WELL RUN COUNCIL

MOIRA SHIRE COUNCIL BUDGET 2020/21

RECOMMENDATION

That Council
1.  Adopt the 2020/21 Budget, including the Fees and Charges, as provided with this report.

2. Thanks submitters for their contributions to the development of the budget.

3.  Authorise the CEO to complete actions required under Section 130 and Section 223 of the
Local Government Act 1989.

1. Executive Summary
This report seeks Council’s adoption of the Moira Shire Council Budget 2020/21.

This budget was initially prepared prior to the COVID-19 pandemic but following extensive
public submissions and a very clear expectation from Government that the Council will play a
lead role in the recovery phase it has been heavily modified to create a more responsive
financial outlook.

The budget continues our efforts to provide modern facilities for our many communities whilst
maintaining a sustained financial commitment to a large road network, continue Moira’s enviable
work on our sustainability agenda and ensure services continue to be available to our 30,000
residents.

The draft Budget was released for public feedback in April 2020. This followed extensive council
and management involvement in its development.

The consultation process concluded on 27 May 2020 and council received 26 written
submissions. Council heard from 12 submitters that spoke in support of their submissions. The
submissions ranged from roads, tourism, recreation reserves, playgrounds, pedestrian
crossings, arts and expressing support for capital works projects listed in the budget.

The vast majority of the submissions referred to works that can be delivered within the existing
budget and funded works programs. Council also received some submissions that sought to
better understand the more detailed financial elements of the budget.

Several submissions’ proposals are earmarked for delivery in council’s four-year capital
investment program.

2. Background and Options

Budget priorities

Council prepared the budget in accordance with the requirements of the Act and Local

Government Model Financial Report. The key elements of the budget includes:

¢ Increase general rates and municipal charge in accordance with the ‘Rate Cap’ of 2.00%.
Most will be dedicated to a COVID19 recovery plan targeted at families and small business;
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CORPORATE ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING
OFFICER REPORTS FOR DETERMINATION WEDNESDAY, 24 JUNE 2020

FILE NO: F19/504 ITEM NO: 9.2.3
4. A WELL RUN COUNCIL

MOIRA SHIRE COUNCIL BUDGET 2020/21 (cont'd)

¢ No increase in the organic bin service charge or the environmental levy. The kerbside bin
charge will increase by $1.50 and due to further fluctuations in the recycling market the
recycle bin will increase by $4.50 for the year

e Council Fees and charges have increased by an average of 2%

¢ Proposal to take on low interest debt for the first time in many years as we are now
approaching some larger projects that require more than annual budget allocations.

Major Initiatives
In 2020/21 Council proposes delivery of new assets and the expansion, upgrade and renewal of
existing assets including —

e More than $600,000 for flood mitigation as well as improvements to levee banks,

irrigation
systems and bollards

¢ Almost $9 million for roads, drainage and kerb and channel works across the shire

e $4.35 million for the new Yarrawonga Library development

e $2.56 million for the Yarrawonga Multisports Stadium development

e Completion of the commercial waste sorting facility at the Cobram Landfill

e Establishing the Innovative Services are better services community support
Several of the proposed projects will only proceed if grant applications are successful or after
further community consultation.

Response to community feedback and submissions

Council received 26 written submissions in response to the statutory consultation process. The

vast majority of the submissions referred to works that can be delivered within the existing

budget and others had a number of funded works programs. These include

e Funding of arts and cultural initiatives

e Construction of a series of pedestrian crossings

¢ A number of submissions proposed sealing of roads and council will progress most of these
in accordance with the established shared-funding arrangements

e Comprehensive COVID support package to boost businesses and tourism.

Council also received some submissions that sought to better understand the more detailed
financial elements of the budget.

Following council’s adoption of the budget, written responses will be provided to all submitters
confirming council’s response to their proposal.

3. Legislative / Policy Implications

The proposed budget has been prepared in accordance with the Local Government Act and
Regulations and the Model Financial Report.

4.  Conflict of Interest Considerations
There are no officer conflict of interest issues to consider within this report.
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CORPORATE
OFFICER REPORTS FOR DETERMINATION

ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING

WEDNESDAY, 24 JUNE 2020

FILE NO: F19/504
4. A WELL RUN COUNCIL

ITEM NO: 9.2.3

MOIRA SHIRE COUNCIL BUDGET 2020/21 (cont'd)

5. Conclusion

The budget maintains council’s sound financial position and provides a good balance between
COVID recovery, new projects and the need to maintain existing infrastructure. The majority of
community feedback can be met from existing budget programs.

Attachments
1 Moira Shire 2020-21 Budget

Moira Shire Council
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CORPORATE ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING
OFFICER REPORTS FOR DETERMINATION WEDNESDAY, 24 JUNE 2020

FILE NO: F19/504 ITEM NO: 9.2.3
4. A WELL RUN COUNCIL

MOIRA SHIRE COUNCIL BUDGET 2020/21 (cont'd)

ATTACHMENT No [1] - Moira Shire 2020-21 Budget

Moira Shire
Draft 2020/21 Budget

June 2020
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CORPORATE ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING
OFFICER REPORTS FOR DETERMINATION WEDNESDAY, 24 JUNE 2020

FILE NO: F19/504 ITEM NO: 9.2.3
4. A WELL RUN COUNCIL

MOIRA SHIRE COUNCIL BUDGET 2020/21 (cont'd)

ATTACHMENT No [1] - Moira Shire 2020-21 Budget
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CORPORATE
OFFICER REPORTS FOR DETERMINATION

ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING
WEDNESDAY, 24 JUNE 2020

FILE NO: F19/504
4. A WELL RUN COUNCIL

ITEM NO: 9.2.3

MOIRA SHIRE COUNCIL BUDGET 2020/21 (cont'd)

ATTACHMENT No [1] - Moira Shire 2020-21 Budget

The original draft 2020/21 budget was
initially prepared prior to the COVID-19
pandemic but following extensive public
submissions and a very clear expectation
from Government that the Council will play
a lead role in the recovery phase it has
been heavily modified to create a more
responsive financial outlook.

The key elements of that outlook are the
dedication of much of the 2% rate cap to a
COVID18 recovery plan targeted at
families and small business. Helping small
business open up to what looks like being
a boom for regional tourism with
international travel suspended and
supporting our many community
committees to get facilities safely open
again.

It is vital, especially during times of global
uncertainty, that Council provides a solid
framework from which our communities
will not only survive, but be able to rebuild
quickly and efficiently and this budget has
been designed to complement support
being provided by other levels of
government.

On top of an already substantial capital
investment program Council has been
very fortunate to receive stimulus funding
from the Federal Government and specific
grants from the Victorian Government that
will support community projects, stimulate
private sector investment and importantly
create jobs.

When the draft budget was placed on
exhibition we were concerned that
residents were pre-occupied with

COVID18 restrictions and didn't have time
to respond. That soon changed with a
large number of submissions suggesting
where funds should be directed and in
some cases opposing community projects.

We also received some submissions that
sought to better understand the more
detailed financial elements of the budget

MESSAGE FROM THE MAYOR AND CEO

and make suggestions as to how the
council could be managed more prudently.
In most cases those suggestions were
based on a lack of clarity around how
council services are funded. We hope our
responses were of benefit to those
submitters.

This is the final budget to be approved by
the current group of Councillors and for
those that were elected in 2016 it's been a
fascinating grounding in how Councils are
funded and how important it is to have well
developed relationships with other levels
of government due to our dependence on
grant funding.

In the current budget we propose to take
on some low interest debt for the first time
in many years as we are now approaching
some larger projects that require more
than annual budget allocations. We are
well placed to do this with a healthy
balance sheet and tight cost control that
has enabled us to manage effectively
through several years of rate capping.

The budget continues our efforts to
provide modern facilities for our many
communities whilst maintaining a
sustained financial commitment to a large
road network, continue Moira's enviable
work on our sustainability agenda and
ensure services continue to be available to
our 30,000 residents.

Council maintains 28 recreation reserves,
showgrounds and swimming pools, more
than 150 parks, gardens, playgrounds and
public toilets, four libraries, a mobile library
service and nine waste transfer stations.

We employ both directly and indirectly
hundreds of people and the flow-on effect
from our stable financial platform provides
genuine economic benefit to the whole
shire.

Moira Shire Council
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ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING
WEDNESDAY, 24 JUNE 2020

CORPORATE
OFFICER REPORTS FOR DETERMINATION

FILE NO: F19/504 ITEM NO: 9.2.3

4. A WELL RUN COUNCIL

MOIRA SHIRE COUNCIL BUDGET 2020/21 (cont'd)

ATTACHMENT No [1] - Moira Shire 2020-21 Budget

Fees, charges & rates

Our 2020/21 budget is built on several key
assumptions:

s Rates and the Municipal Charge
will increase on average by the
rate cap of 2%

e There is no increase in the organic
bin service charge, or the
environmental levy. The kerbside
bin charge will increase by $1.50
for the year.

e Due to further fluctuations in the
recycling market the recycle bin
charge will increase by $4.50 for
the year.

* Fees and charges have increased
by an average of 2%

Major Initiatives

In 2020/21 Council proposes delivery of
new assets and the expansion, upgrade
and renewal of existing assets including:

e More than $600,000 for flood
mitigation as well as improvements
to levee banks, irrigation systems
and bollards

s Almost $9 million for roads,
drainage and kerb and channel
works across the shire

o $4.35 million for the new
Yarrawonga Library development

® $2.56 million for the Yarrawonga
Multisports Stadium development

¢ Completion of the commercial
waste sorting facility at the Cobram
Landfill

¢ Commencing delivery of tourism
services through the mobile visitor
information centre

+ Establishing the Innovative
Services are Better services
community support

+ Establishing community based Arts
Hubs throughout the Shire

Four-year capital investment program

The 2020/21 budget should also be read
in conjunction with the four-year Strategic
Resource Plan (SRP).

The SRP proposes Council will deliver
nearly $74 million of works over the four-
year period to 2024 and identifies priority
investment areas including more than $24
million of new and upgraded infrastructure
with investment in drainage and flood
mitigation works.

Councillor Libro Mustica
Mayor

Mark Henderson
CEQO

Moira Shire Council
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CORPORATE
OFFICER REPORTS FOR DETERMINATION

ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING
WEDNESDAY, 24 JUNE 2020

FILE NO: F19/504
4. A WELL RUN COUNCIL

ITEM NO: 9.2.3

MOIRA SHIRE COUNCIL BUDGET 2020/21 (cont'd)

ATTACHMENT No [1] - Moira Shire 2020-21 Budget

2019/20 2020/21

Key Statistics Budget Budget
$'000 $'000

Total Expenditure 56,131 58,882
Comprehensive Operating Surplus 2,727 (2,255)
Cash Result (7.914) (1,947)
Capital Works Program 22,288 22,786
Funding the Capital Works Program
Council 11,504 11,312
Contributions 815 352
Asset Sales 765 182
Borrowings - 5,200
Grants 9,713 5,740
Budgeted Operating Expenditure by Strategic Budget 2020/21
Objective* $'000 %
A great place to live 18,910 31.7%
A thriving local economy 4,405 7.4%
A clean and green environment 10,579 17.7%
A well run Council 25,843 43.3%

Moira Shire Council

Page 19 of 121




CORPORATE ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING
OFFICER REPORTS FOR DETERMINATION WEDNESDAY, 24 JUNE 2020

FILE NO: F19/504 ITEM NO: 9.2.3
4. AWELL RUN COUNCIL

MOIRA SHIRE COUNCIL BUDGET 2020/21 (cont'd)

ATTACHMENT No [1] - Moira Shire 2020-21 Budget

1. LINK TO THE COUNCIL PLAN

This section describes how the Annual Budget links to the achievement of the Council Plan
within an overall planning and reporting framework. This framework guides the Council in
identifying community needs and aspirations over the long term, medium term (Council Plan)
and short term (Annual Budget) and then holding itself accountable (Annual Report).

1.1 LEGISLATIVE PLANNING AND ACCOUNTABILITY
FRAMEWORK

The Strategic Resource Plan, part of and prepared in conjunction with the Council Plan, is a
rolling four-year plan that outlines the financial and non-financial resources that Council
requires to achieve the strategic objectives described in the Council Plan. The Annual Budget
is framed within the Strategic Resource Plan, considering the services and initiatives, which
contribute to achieving the strategic objectives specified in the Council Plan. The diagram
below depicts the planning and accountability framework that applies to local government in
Victoria.

Time horizon Planning Reporting Timing

Medium term Jan —.Jun

Council plan Stakeholder

> Strategic objectives oty
il > Strategies
> Strategic indicators engagement

. Feb — Jun
Strategic resource plan

> Financial statements
> Statements of non-
financial resources

Mar — Jun

Budget

> Services and initiatives

> Service outcome
indicators

> Major initiatives

> Financial statements

: Jul - Sep
Short term

Feeding in to the above, Council has a long-term plan, which articulates a community vision,
mission and values. The Council Plan is prepared with reference to Council's long term
Community Plan.

The timing of each component of the planning framework is critical to the successful
achievement of the planned outcomes.
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MOIRA SHIRE COUNCIL BUDGET 2020/21 (cont'd)

ATTACHMENT No [1] - Moira Shire 2020-21 Budget

1.1.2KEY PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS

Service Level Planning

Although councils have a legal obligation to provide some services— such as animal
management, local roads, food safety and statutory planning—most council services are not
legally mandated, including some services closely associated with councils, such as libraries,
building permits and sporting facilities. Further, over time, the needs and expectations of
communities can change. Therefore, councils need to have robust processes for service
planning and review to ensure all services continue to provide value for money and are in line
with community expectations. In doing so, councils should engage with communities to
determine how to prioritise resources and balance service provision against other
responsibilities such as asset maintenance and capital works.

1.2 OUR PURPOSE

Our vision

Working together to be a vibrant and prosperous rural community

Our values

We will provide local leadership underpinned by a governance framework comprising these
guiding values and behaviours.

Ethical leadership underpins our decision-making and operations. At all levels, we seek to
ensure there is an appropriate balance between the values-based organisational culture
described by our value and underlying behaviours.

* Respect +  Teamwork
+  Honesty + Integrity

s Accountability

1.3 STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES

The Moira Shire Council Plan 2017-2021 centres around four key strategic objectives. These
strategic objectives assist Council to make the most of our regional advantages and include
aspects both internal to Council as well as those that are community aspirations.

Moira Shire Council Page 21 of 121



CORPORATE ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING
OFFICER REPORTS FOR DETERMINATION WEDNESDAY, 24 JUNE 2020

FILE NO: F19/504 ITEM NO: 9.2.3
4. AWELL RUN COUNCIL

MOIRA SHIRE COUNCIL BUDGET 2020/21 (cont'd)

ATTACHMENT No [1] - Moira Shire 2020-21 Budget

Strategic Objective  Description

1. A great place to We will have a connected and welcoming Shire far all by providing well-
live. planned places and quality services.

2. A thriving local We will support local businesses and attract new investment to generate
economy. employment opportunities.

3. Aclean green We will work with our community and stakeholders for an environmentally
environment. sustainable future.

4. Awellrun We will implement a transparent, engaging and accountable governance
Council. structure for current and future generations.

2. SERVICES AND INITIATIVES AND SERVICES

PERFORMANCE OUT INDICATORS

This section provides a description of the services and initiatives to be funded in the Budget
for the 2020/21 year and how these will contribute to achieving the strategic objectives outlined
in the Council Plan. It also describes several initiatives and service performance outcome
indicators for key areas of Council’s operations. Council is required by legislation to identify
major initiatives, initiatives and service performance outcome indicators in the Budget and
report against them in their Annual Report to support transparency and accountability. The
relationship between these accountability requirements in the Council Plan, the Budget and
the Annual Report is shown below.

&3 &N =3

Strategic objective [ Services Indicators (outcome

S

r - o
Strategicind Initiatives Major initiatives

[ Services Indicators (outcome) Service indicators

L. "

> Major initiatives
Strategicindicato [ Initiative Major initiatives Governance &

management checklist

Service indicators (outcome)
Financial ind 5
Sustainable capacity indicators

Source: Department of Environment, Land, Water and Planning
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MOIRA SHIRE COUNCIL BUDGET 2020/21 (cont'd)

ATTACHMENT No [1] - Moira Shire 2020-21 Budget

2.1 STRATEGIC OBJECTIVE 1: A GREAT PLACE TO LIVE

To achieve our objective, we will continue to plan, deliver and improve high quality, cost
effective, accessible and responsive services. The services, initiatives, major initiatives and
service performance indicators for each business area are described below.

Expense Income Nett
Service areas Description of services provided $000 $000 $000
T'o provide for the administration and
enforcement of legislation regulating
domestic animals and livestock to
maintain a safe and orderly community
Service committed to improving the
liveability and actively shaping the future
for Moira residents through arts and
culture activities and programs.
This grants program provides funds that
strengthen the involvement of community
organisations by developing services,
management of facilities, coordination of
events and promotion of tourism and
health in the community
This service is responsible for working
with the community, stakeholders and
partner agencies to develop long term
community plans
This program provides drainage as part
Drainage of it's network of rural and urban roads 274 - 274
service provided to the community
This service undertakes inspections and
Environmental Health registers premises in accordance with 436 (223) 213
health and food legislation.
Supporting community events across the
Shire including Australia Day events,
Cultural Diversity week, International
Women's day.

Animal Control Service 062 (201) 361

Arts and Culture 348 (4) 344

Community Grants Program 227 - 227

Community Services

-
na
=
-]

@) 1,274

Events 135 - 135

Provision of financial contribution to the
operation of the Goulburn Valley Regional
Library that provides library service at four
locations and a mobile library service.

Library 809 - 809

To regulate, control and enforce
breaches of legislation and local laws
Local Laws Enforcement with the aim to maintain a safe and 332 (959) 277
orderly environment within the
municipality

Provision of maternal & child health
services across the Shire at five locations
Maternal and Child Health and an outreach program, also include 780 (375) 405
immunisation programs for infants and
school children

Moira Shire Council Page 23 of 121




CORPORATE

OFFICER REPORTS FOR DETERMINATION

ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING
WEDNESDAY, 24 JUNE 2020

FILE NO: F19/504
4. A WELL RUN COUNCIL

ITEM NO:

9.2.3

MOIRA SHIRE COUNCIL BUDGET 2020/21 (cont'd)

ATTACHMENT No [1] - Moira Shire 2020-21 Budget

Service areas

Description of services provided

Expense
$000

Income
$000

Nett
$000

Parks and Gardens

This program involves the maintenance
and upgrade of Council’'s parks and
gardens, reserves, town entrances and
open spaces

4,633

4,633

Recreation and Safety

Council operates six outdoor aquatic
facilties, one indoor aquatic facility and
two sports centres, along with 19
recreation reserves and four
showgrounds.

1,700

(46)

1,654

Roads and Bridges

This program provides a network of rural
and urban roads, urban footpaths and
drainage to the community.

6,413

(2,001)

4,412

School Crossing Supervision

To provide for the safe passage of
children and adults when using school
crossings during nominated hours.

139

(55)

84

Street Cleaning and Bin
Collection

A seven week cycle sweeping 240km of
kerb and channel on urban roads,
footpaths and drainage. Daily sweeping
and cleaning of parking areas, foolpaths
and CBD areas. Bi-annual sweeping of
main intersections to ensure safety for
the travelling public. Council operates a
garbage compactor to collect rubbish
from street bins in CBD areas, park and
recreation areas, road reserves, and butt
bins.

674

674

Youth

This manages youth services and events
that connect and engage Noira's younger

citizens.

171

(30)

141
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ATTACHMENT No [1] - Moira Shire 2020-21 Budget

2.2 STRATEGIC OBJECTIVE 2: A THRIVING LOCAL ECONOMY

Service areas

Description of services provided

Expense
$000

Income
$000

Nett
$000

Aerodrome

Operational management of the
Yarrawonga Aerodrome used by general
aviation industry.

95

(3)

92

Building Control

To administer the legislative requirements
of the Building Act, Building Regulations
and associated Australian Standards in
relation to building work, building
standards, illegal building work and
related safety matters, including Places
of Public Entertainment, swimming pools
and Essential Safety Measures

1,040

(470)

570

Business and Industry
Development

This service supporls the attractions,
growth and innovation of existing and
prospective businesses across the Shire
Council provides a wide range of training
and development opportunities for local
businesses.

935

(28)

907

Planning

Undertakes statutory and strategic land
use planning as well as enforcement of
the planning scheme

1,054

(448)

606

Tourism

This service supports our tourism sector
by developing Moira Shire and the wider
Sun Country on the Murray Region as a
sustainable year round tourism
destination, through marketing, industry
and product development

783

783

Visitor Services

This service supports the visitor economy
and our local tourism businesses. It
ensures visitors are aware of all our
region has to offer and are inspired to
stay longer, spend more and return
frequently.

497

(12)

485

10
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MOIRA SHIRE COUNCIL BUDGET 2020/21 (cont'd)

ATTACHMENT No [1] - Moira Shire 2020-21 Budget

2.3 STRATEGIC OBJECTIVE 3: A CLEAN GREEN
ENVIRONMENT

Expense Income Nett

Service areas Description of services provided $000 $000 $000
Development of environmental policy,
Environmental Sustainability  |implentation of environmental projects 797 (75) 722

and delivery of educational programs.

This service provides collection of

Kerbside Garbage Service kerbside recyclable materials from 3,632 (3,309) 323

households.

Operational management of Council's

LandfiliTransfer Stations Iand.ﬂll 5|!cz at Cobram gnd nine tran.sfcz.r 3.281 (3,256) 25
stations including monitoring to maintain

environmental standards.

Responds to planning and other referrals
relating to natural resource management,
including (with other agencies)
management of Kinniards Wetlands

Natural Resources 80 80

This service provides collection of
QOrganic Waste Service kerbside organic waste materials from 1,075 (1,069) 6
households

This service provides collection of
Recycling Service kerbside recyclable materials from 1,714|  (1,652) 62
households

11
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2.4 STRATEGIC OBJECTIVE 4: A WELL RUN COUNCIL

Service areas

Description of services provided

Expense

$000

Income
$000

Nett
$000

Accounting Services

Financial based services to both interal
and external customers responsible for
financial management, control and
reporting expenses include accounting of
non cash items including depreciation
and amortisation charges

11,396

(4,496)

6,900

Asset Management

Management of Council's property and
infrastructure assets, including design,
construction and delivery of capital works
projects. Management of Council's asset
database including periodic updating of
valuations.

3,640

(42)

3,508

Civic Building Maintenance

This program ensures that Council's
building assets are well maintained and
serviceable.

1176

1,176

Communications

This service is responsible for the
management and provision of advice on
external and internal communications.
Including management of Council's
website and social media platforms

704

704

Contract Compliance

The systems used to manage the
procurement and tendering processes of
Council to ensure best value outcomes
are obtained, includes the systems used
to manage contracts in accordance with
the agreed terms and conditions

155

155

Customer Service

The Customer Service team located in
Cobram and Yarrawonga support the
organization in resolving customer
enquiries, lodging requests for service,
operating the Call Centre, receipting
payments, greeting incoming customers,
processing applications and managing
the hire of various council facilities.

611

611

Emergency Management

To maintain preparedness and
responsiveness and to implement
recovery processes in the event of an
emergency occurring within the
municipality, with an objective that
contributes to community safety through
the reduction of the impact of emergency
related events that can cause death,
injury, loss of property and community

disruption

118

(29)

89

12
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Service areas

Description of services provided

Expense
$000

Income
$000

Nett
$000

Fire Prevention

Implement actions as defined in the
municipal fire management strategy in
partnership with all stakeholders to
reduce the likelihood of the loss of life and
property by fire to enhance community
safety.

22

21

Fleet Management

The purpose of this program is to ensure
appropriate plant is available to meet
service levels. Council is committed to
providing quality plant and vehicles to
assist employees in carrying out their
duties and operational requirements in a
safe and efficient manner within
reasonable bounds of affordability.
Running costs of fleet are charged to the
service incurring the cost

(87)

Governance

The processes used by Council to
operate and control the administration,
ethics and compliance of the
organisation

2,386

(11)

2,375

Help Desk

IT Help Desk provides ‘break/fix’ support
for all IT systems and equipment
including coordinating vendor support.

Information Technology
Systems

Information Technology Services ensures
Council’s IT systems and equipment is
properly maintained and working as
required by the business including
providing support for business syslem
improvements, IT training and Geospatial
Information System support

2,080

2,080

Learning and Development

To continually improve the effectiveness
of the organisation through employee
education to support organisational goals
and compliance requirements.

320

320

OH&S

Provide systems and support for a
workplace which is safe, so that the
health and safety of our employees are
not put at risk.

688

687

Payroll

Deliver and administer the payroll function
to the organisation and ensure that the
Council’s legal, award and industrial
obligations are met

129

129

Property Management

Systems used to manage Council
leases, tenure arrangements disposal
and acquisition of property.

441

(359)

82

Records Management

Records Management is responsible for
maintaining and supporting Council's
Documents Management system and
documents management practises within
Council including the secure storage and
retrieval of physical documents

178

178

13
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ATTACHMENT No [1] - Moira Shire 2020-21 Budget

Service areas

Description of services provided

Expense Income

$000

$000

Nett
$000

Recruitment

Attract and engage a diverse range of
suitably qualified people to join our
organisation

309

309

Revenue and Property
Services

Raising and collection of municipal rates
and charges, maintenance of Council
rating information and valuation of
properties throughout the municipality.

673

(31,221)

(30,548)

Risk Management

Processes used to proactively manage
the risks that affect Council, includes the
identification, assessment and priortising
of risks to ensure Council's operations
are effectively maintained.

207

207

Service Centres

The Customer Service team located at
the Yarrawonga Service Centre.

147

147

14
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2.5 RECONCILIATION WITH BUDGETED OPERATING RESULT

(Revenue) Expenditure Revenue
$’000 $°000 $’000

A great place to live 15,919 18,910 2,992
A thriving local economy 3,445 4,405 960
A clean and green environment 9242 10,579 1,337
A well run Council 9,066 14,561 5,495
Total services and initiatives 37,672 48,455 10,783
Expenses added in:
Depreciation 11,190
Finance costs 93
Deficit before funding sources 48,955
Funding sources added in:
Rates and charges revenue 30,751
Waste charge revenue 8,024
Capital works revenue 7775
Total funding sources 46,550
Operating surplus/(deficit) for the year (2,405)

15
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MOIRA SHIRE COUNCIL BUDGET 2020/21 (cont'd)

ATTACHMENT No [1] - Moira Shire 2020-21 Budget

3 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This section presents information in regard to the Financial Statements and Statement of
Human Resources. The budget information for the year 2020/21 has been supplemented
with projections to 2023/24 extracted from the Strategic Resource Plan.

This section includes the following financial statements prepared in accordance with the
Local Government Act 1989 and the Local Government (Planning and Reporting) regulations
2014.

¢ Comprehensive Income Statement
* Balance Sheet

+ Statement of Changes in Equity

« Statement of Cash Flows

+ Statement of Capital Works

e Statement of Human Resources

Pending Accounting Standards
The 2020-21 budget has been prepared based on the accounting standards applicable at
the date of preparation. It has been updated to include the impact of

e AASB 16 Leases,
e AASB 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers and
e AASB 1058 Income of Not-for-Profit Entities,

but pending accounting standards that will be in effect from the 2020-21 financial year have
not been considered in the development of the budget.

Standards that are likely to impact on the 2020-21 financial statements, not considered in the
preparation of the budget include:

* AASB 1059 Service Concession Arrangements: Grantors
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MOIRA SHIRE COUNCIL BUDGET 2020/21 (cont'd)

ATTACHMENT No [1] - Moira Shire 2020-21 Budget

Comprehensive Income Statement

For the four years ending 30 June 2024

Budget Budget Strategic Resource Plan
201920  2020/21 2021122 2022123 202324
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Income
Rates and charges 37,524 39,072 40,149 41,309 42 487
Statutory fees and fines 1,347 1,357 1,398 1,440 1,483
User fees 1,997 1,936 1,994 2,054 2,116
Grants - Operating 6,255 5,818 11,789 12,080 12,276
Grants - Capital 9713 6,740 4,095 8,545 6,945
Contributions - monetary 854 420 100 100 100
Contributions - non-monetary 200 200 200 200 200
Net gain/(loss) on disposal of property, 164
infrastructure, plant and equipment (17) (164) (225) 275) 279)
§hare of net profits/(losses) of associates and (10) (10) 79 &0 81
joint ventures
Otherincome 1,095 1,108 1,064 983 988
Total Income 58,858 56,477 60,644 66,516 66,400
Expenses
Employee costs (21,939) (22,591) (22,930) (23,274) (23,623)
Materials and services (22,950) (23,258) (23,735) (24,221) (24,716)
Bad and doubtful debts (10) (10) (14) (10) (10)
Depreciation (10,262)  (11,190) (10,622) (10653)  (11,207)
Amortisation - Right of use assets - (489) (489) (489) (489)
Borrowing costs (154) (93) (58) (55) (43)
Finance costs - leases - (80) (80) (80) (80)
Other expenses (816) (1,171) (1,024) (1,063) (1,099)
Total Expenses (56,131) (58,882) (58,952) (59,844) (61,268)
Surplus/(deficit) for the year 2,727 (2,405) 1,692 6,672 5132
Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to surplus
or deficit in future periods:
Net asset revaluation increment /(decrement) 4,892  (35,962) 12,173 12,491 12,899
Total comprehensive result 7618 (38,367) 13,865 19,163 18,031
17
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MOIRA SHIRE COUNCIL BUDGET 2020/21 (cont'd)

ATTACHMENT No [1] - Moira Shire 2020-21 Budget

Balance Sheet
For the four years ending 30 June 2024

Budget  Budget Strategic Resource Plan
2019/20  2020/21  2021/22  2022/23  2023/24
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Assets

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents 30,024 28,077 25750 23,936 22,438
Trade and other receivables 4970 4,750 3,549 3638 3742
Inventories 550 575 578 581 584
Total current assets 35 544 33,402 29 877 28,156 26,764
Non-current assets

Trade and other receivables 1,550 - - - -
Investments in associates and joint ventures 950 975 1,004 1,034 1,065
Property, infrastructure, plant & equipment 588,288 608,669 624571 644 955 664,186
Right-of-use assets - 2,476 2,476 2,476 2476
Intangible asset 2,000 2,000 2,000 2,000 2,000
Total non-current assets 602,788 614,120 630,051 650,465 669,728
Total assets 638,332 647,622 659929 678,621 696 491
Liabilities

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables 3,000 3,150 2,199 2,244 2,282
Trust funds and deposits 750 725 725 725 725
Provisions 4500 4,400 4350 4,350 4350
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings 578 629 774 829 520
Lease liabilities - 957 957 957 957
Total current liabilities 8,828 9,861 9,005 9,105 8,834
Non-current liabilities

Provisions 13,000 12,375 12,731 13,045 13,366
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings 883 5454 4,495 3,611 3,400
Lease liabilities - 1,519 1,519 1,919 1,919
Total non-current liabilities 13,883 19,348 18,745 18,175 18,285
Total liabilities 22,711 29,209 27,750 21,279 27,119
Net assets 615,621 618,313 632178 651,341 669,372
Equity

Accumulated surplus 209,539 248,193 249885 256,556 261,689
Reserves 406,082 370,120 382293 394785 407 683
Total equity 615,621 618,313 632178 651,341 669,372

18
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ATTACHMENT No [1] - Moira Shire 2020-21 Budget

Statement of Changes in Equity
For the four years ending 30 June 2024

Accumulated  Revaluation Other
Total Surplus Reserve Reserves
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
2019/20
Balance at beginning of the financial year 556,115 199 021 355 447 1,647
Surplus/{deficit) for the year 2,127 2,727 - -
Net asset revaluation increment/(decrement) 48,958 - 48,958 -
Transfer (to)/from reserves 7.821 7,791 - 30
Balance at end of financial year 615,621 209,539 404,405 1,677
2020/21
Balance at beginning of the financial year 609,821 203,739 4104 405 1677
Surplus/{deficit) for the year 2,799 2,799 - -
Net asset revaluation increment/(decrement) (36,082) - (36,082) -
Transfer (to)/from reserves 41,775 41,655 - 120
Balance at end of financial year 618,313 248,193 368,323 1,797
2021/22
Balance at beginning of the financial year 618,679 248,559 368,323 1,797
Surplus/(deficit) for the year 1,326 1,326 - -
Net asset revaluation increment/(decrement) 12,053 - 12,053 -
Transfer (to)/from reserves 120 120
Balance at end of financial year 632,179 249 885 380,376 1,917
2022/23
Balance at beginning of the financial year 632,549 250,256 380,376 1917
Surplus/(deficit) for the year 6,301 6,301 - -
Net asset revaluation increment/(decrement) 12,371 - 12,371 -
Transfer (to)/from reserves 120 - - 120
Balance at end of financial year 651,342 256,557 392,748 2,037
2023/24
Balance at beginning of the financial year 651,719 256,934 392,748 2,037
Surplus/(deficit) far the year 4,755 4,755 - -
Net asset revaluation increment/(decrement) 12,778 - 12,778 -
Transfer (to)/from reserves 120 - - 120
Balance at end of financial year 669,372 261,689 405,526 2157
19
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MOIRA SHIRE COUNCIL BUDGET 2020/21 (cont'd)

ATTACHMENT No [1] - Moira Shire 2020-21 Budget

Statement of Cash Flows

For the four years ending 30 June 2024

Budget Budget Strategic Resource Plan
2019/20 2020/21 2021722 2022/23 2023724

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Inflows Inflows Inflows Inflows Inflows

(Outflows) (Outflows) (Outflows) (Outflows) (Cutflows)

Cash flows from operating activities

Rates and charges 37,924 39,276 41395 41,511 42 711
Statutory fees and fines 1,352 1,450 1,441 1,447 1,491
User fees 2,030 2,550 2,056 2,064 2127
Grants - operating 12,0565 6,862 12,155 12,139 12 341
Grants - capital 8,053 7,940 4222 8,587 6982
Contributions - monetary 854 390 100 100 100
Interest received 612 800 285 182 165
Other receipts 407 1,060 806 805 828
Net GST refund / payment - 3,500 2,896 3,046 3217
Employee costs (21.938)  (22,100) (24 581)  (24471) (24 844)
Materials and services (22,949)  (22,500) (26,056)  (26,067)  (26,595)
Trust funds and deposits repaid (21) (50) - - -
Other payments (516) (750) (770) (788) (818)

Net cash provided by/{used in) operating

. 17 863 18,418 13,949 18,555 17,703
activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Payments for property, infrastructure, plant
and equipment

Proceeds from sale of property, infrastructure
plant and equipment

Net cash provided by/(used in) investing
activities

(19,850)  (25,650) (15728) (19.811)  (18,963)

1,015 BO7 325 325 325

(18.835)  (24,843)  (15403) (19.486)  (18,638)

Cash flows from financing activities

Finance costs (154) (93) (58) (55) (43)
Proceeds from borrowings - 5,200 - - -
Repayment of borrowings (988) (629) (814) (829) (520)

Net cash provided by/(used in) financing

activities (1.142) 4478 (872) (884) (563)

Net increasef{decrease) in cash & cash
equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of
the financial year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of
the financial year

@114)  (1,947)  (2327)  (1,814)  (1,498)

32,138 30,024 28,077 25,750 23936

30,024 28,077 25,750 23,936 22438
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MOIRA SHIRE COUNCIL BUDGET 2020/21 (cont'd)

ATTACHMENT No [1] - Moira Shire 2020-21 Budget

Statement of Capital Works

For the four years ending 30 June 2024

Budget Budget Strategic Resource Plan
2019/20 2020121 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Property
Land improvements 1,012 410 3,596 9463 6,882
Total land 1,012 410 3,596 9463 6,882
Buildings 10,162 9,118 2,555 1,581 1,539
Total buildings 10,162 9,118 2,555 1,581 1,539
Total property 11,174 9,528 6,151 11,044 8,421
Plant and equipment
Plant, machinery and equipment 1,187 1,284 952 929 a57
Fixtures, fittings and furniture 3 14 13 14 14
Total plant and equipment 1,190 1,298 965 943 971
Infrastructure
Roads 6,632 4,655 3,568 3,587 5,842
Bridges a0 90 54 56 58
Footpaths and cycleways 300 1,200 734 379 325
Drainage 1,360 3177 1,744 1,146 919
Kerb and channel 550 540 800 830 860
Recreational, leisure and community facilities 692 1,211 237 203 223
Waste management 310 200 - - -
Parks, open space and streetscapes 60 157 189 195 201
Off street car parks - - 150 450 -
Other infrastructure 30 30 33 38 43
Total infrastructure 9,924 11,960 7,509 6,883 8,473
Total capital works expenditure 22,288 22,786 14,625 18,870 17,865
Represented by:
New asset expenditure 9478 11,666 2,862 660 150
Asset renewal expenditure 8,193 8,737 9415 8661 8,905
Asset expansion expenditure 505 425 893 7,055 5,400
Asset upgrade expenditure 4112 1,958 1,455 2,494 3410
Total capital works 22,288 22,786 14,625 18,870 17,865
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MOIRA SHIRE COUNCIL BUDGET 2020/21 (cont'd)

ATTACHMENT No [1] - Moira Shire 2020-21 Budget

Statement of Human Resources
For the four years ending 30 June 2024

Strategic Resource Plan

Budget Budget Projections
2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24
§'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Staff expenditure
Employee costs - operating 20,467 21,080 21,396 21,717 22,043
Employee costs - capital 170 170 173 176 180
Total staff expenditure 20,637 21,250 21,569 21,893 22,223
Staff numbers FTE FTE FTE FTE FTE
Employees - operating 217.7 218.6 218.6 218.6 218.6
Employees - capital 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0
Total staff numbers 219.7 220.6 220.6 220.6 220.6

A summary of human resources expenditure categorised according to the organisational
structure of Council is included below

Comprises

Budget Permanent Casual Temporary

2020/21 Full Time  Part Time
Department $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Building, Safety and Amenity 1,701 1,195 342 81 84
Community Development 2,264 1,011 1,103 149 -
Construction and Assets 2,004 1,897 - 78 29
Customer and Communications 1,227 806 334 87 -
Economic Development 1,101 77 231 140 12
Environmental Senices 265 96 169 - -
Finance 831 609 142 16 63
Governance and Risk 704 460 243 -
Information Senices 993 894 76 23 -
Office of CEO 1,248 1,248 - - -
Operations 5,847 5216 151 455 25
Organisaticnal Development 768 625 143 - -
Planning 737 628 109 - -
Waste Management 1,391 755 456 180 -
Total operating staff 21,080 16,157 3,500 1,210 212
Capitalised labour 170
Apprentices and Trainees 597
Extemal contracted employees 62
Other employee costs 852
Total staff 22,761
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ATTACHMENT No [1] - Moira Shire 2020-21 Budget

A summary of the number of full time equivalent (FTE) Council staff in relation to the above

expenditure is included below:

Comprises
Budget Permanent Casual Temporary
2020/21 Full Time Part Time

Department FTE FTE FTE FTE FTE
Building, Safety and Amenity 18.9 13.0 38 0.9 1.2
Community Development 220 10.0 10.7 1.3 -
Construction and Assets 19.2 18.0 - 0.8 0.5
Customer and Communications 13.8 9.0 3.8 1.0 -
Economic Development 1.7 7.0 3.0 1.6 0.1
Emvironmental Senices 29 1.0 1.9 - -
Finance 8.7 6.0 1.8 0.2 0.8
Govemnance and Risk 7.5 5.0 2.5 - -
Information Serices 11.2 10.0 1.0 0.3 -
Office of CEO 8.0 8.0 - - -
Operations 657 57.8 21 L35 0.3
Organisational Development 7.4 6.0 1.5 - -
Planning 7.2 6.0 1.2 - -
Waste Management 14.4 3 5.3 1.8 -
Total operating staff 218.6 163.9 38.5 13.3 2.9
Capitalised labour staff 2.0

Apprentices and Trainees 7.0

External contracted employees 1.0

Total staff 228.6

23

Moira Shire Council

Page 38 of 121




CORPORATE ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING
OFFICER REPORTS FOR DETERMINATION WEDNESDAY, 24 JUNE 2020

FILE NO: F19/504 ITEM NO: 9.2.3
4. A WELL RUN COUNCIL

MOIRA SHIRE COUNCIL BUDGET 2020/21 (cont'd)

ATTACHMENT No [1] - Moira Shire 2020-21 Budget

4. NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This section presents detailed information on material components of the financial
statements. Council needs to assess which components are material, considering the dollar
amounts and nature of these components.

4.1 COMPREHENSIVE INCOME STATEMENT

4.1.1 Rates and Charges

Rates and charges are required by the Act and the Regulations to be disclosed in Council's
annual budget.

In developing the Strategic Resource Plan, rates and charges were identified as an
important source of revenue. Planning for future rate increases has therefore been an
important component of the Strategic Resource Planning pracess. The Fair Go Rates
System (FGRS) sets out the maximum amount councils may increase rates in a year. For
2020/21 the FGRS cap has been set at 2.0%. The cap applies to both general rates and
municipal charges and is calculated on the basis of council's average rates and charges.

The level of required rates and charges has been considered in this context, with reference
to Council's other sources of income and the planned expenditure on services and works to
be undertaken for the community.

To achieve these objectives while maintaining service levels and a strong capital
expenditure program, the average general rate and the municipal charge will increase by
2.0% in line with the rate cap.

This will raise total general rates and municipal charges for 2020/21 to $30,621,000.

.4.1.1(a) The reconciliation of the total rates and charges to the
Comprehensive Income Statement is as follows:

2019/20 202021 Change

Type or class of land 000 $000 000 %

General rates* 24277 24,719 441 1.82%
Municipal charge™ 5,685 5,903 218 3.83%
Waste management charges 7.616 8,007 391 5.1%
Supplementary rates and rate adjustments 385 147 (238) (61.8%)
Interest on rates and charges 118 110 &) (6.9%)
Revenue in lieu of rates™ 181 184 3 1.7%
Total rates and charges 38,263 39,069 806 2.11%

*These items are subject to the rate cap established under the FGRS system. The Budget
2020/21 includes the impact of prior year supplementary rates and rate adjustments in
calculating the total percentage increase.

**Revenue in lieu of rates includes income received under s94 (6A) of the Electricity Industry
Act 2000 for renewable energy generators (solar farms).
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4.1.1(b) The rate in the dollar to be levied as general rates under Section 158
of the Act for each type or class of land compared with the previous financial

year
2019/20 2020/21
Type or class of land cents/$ cents/$
CIvV Clv
General rate - Residential Building 0.0035000 0.0034300
General rate - Residential Vacant 0.0070000 0.0068600
General rate - Rural Building 0.0035000 0.0034300
General rate - Rural Vacant 0.0070000 0.0068600
General rate - Farm Building 0.0035000 0.0034300
General rate - Farm Vacant 0.0035000 0.0034300
General rate - Commercial Building 0.0049000 0.0048020
General rate - Commercial Vacant 0.0070000 0.0068600
General rate - Industrial Building 0.0049000 0.0048020
General rate - Industrial Vacant 0.0070000 0.0068600
General rate - Cultural and Recreational 0.0033950 0.0033271

Change
cents/$
Civ

(0.0000700)
(0.0001400)
(0.0000700)
(0.0001400)
(0.0000700)
(0.0000700)
(0.0000080)
(0.0001400)
(0.0000980)
(0.0001400)
(0.0000679)

%
(2.0%)
(2.0%)
(2.0%)
(2.0%)
(2.0%)
(2.0%)
(2.0%)
(2.0%)
(2.0%)
(2.0%)
(2.0%)

4.1.1(c) The estimated total amount to be raised by general rates in relation to
each type or class of land, and the estimated total amount to be raised by

general rates, compared with the previous financial year

Type or class of land 2019/20 2020/21 Change
$'000 $'000 $'000 %
Residential Building 11,289 11,418 129 11%
Residential Vacant 1,160 1,318 158 13.7%
Farm Building 4918 4,971 53 1.1%
Farm Vacant 1,374 1,392 18 1.3%
Commercial Building 2,046 2,093 47 2.3%
Commercial Vacant 68 75 7 11.0%
Industnal Building 1,344 1,353 8 0.6%
Industrial Vacant 52 54 ? 3.6%
Rural Building 1,882 1,890 9 0.5%
Rural Vacant 144 183 9 6.5%
Cultural and Recreational 1 2 1 65.4%
Total to be raised by general rates 24,277 24,719 441 1.8%
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MOIRA SHIRE COUNCIL BUDGET 2020/21 (cont'd)

ATTACHMENT No [1] - Moira Shire 2020-21 Budget

4.1.1(d) The number of assessments in relation to each type or class of land,
and the total number of assessments, compared with the previous financial

year
Type of class of land 2019120 2020/21 Change
Number Number Number %

Residential Building 10,636 10,735 99 0.9%
Residential Vacant 807 785 (22) (2.7%)
Rural Building 1,585 1,593 8 0.5%
Rural Vacant 217 209 (8) (3.7%)
Farm Building 2173 2,144 (29)  (1.3%)
Farm Vacant 1,057 1,055 2) (0.2%)
Commercial Building 969 967 (2)  (0.2%)
Commercial Vacant 38 41 3 7.9%
Industrial Building 96 97 1 1.0%
Industrial Vacant 28 29 1 3.6%
Cultural and Recreational 1 3 2 200.0%
Total to be raised by general rates 17,607 17,658 51 0.3%

4.1.1(e) The basis of valuation to be used is the capital improved value (CIV)

4.1.1(f) The estimated total value of each type or class of land, and the
estimated total value of land, compared with the previous financial year

2019/20 2020/21 Change
Type or class of land $'000 $'000 $000 "
Residential Building 3,173,316 3,328,863 155,547 4.9%
Residential Vacant 165,346 192,174 26,828 16.2%
Rural Building 536,867 551,076 14,209 2.6%
Rural Vacant 20,970 22,342 1,371 6.5%
Farm Building 1,413,139 1,449,278 36,139 2.6%
Farm Vacant 396,759 405,969 9,209 23%
Commercial Building 417 345 435,869 18,524 4 4%
Commercial Vacant 9,238 10,967 1,729 18.7%
Industrial Building 271,992 281,677 9,685 3.6%
Industrial Vacant 7,191 7,889 698 97%
Cultural and Recreational 426 729 303 71.1%
Total to be raised by general rates 6,412,589 6,686,832 274,243 4.3%
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MOIRA SHIRE COUNCIL BUDGET 2020/21 (cont'd)

ATTACHMENT No [1] - Moira Shire 2020-21 Budget

4.1.1(g) The municipal charge under Section 159 of the Act compared with the
previous financial year

Per Rateable Per Rateable

Property Property Change
Type of Charge 2019/20 2020121
$ $ $ %
Municipal 348.24 355.20 606  2.00%

4.1.1(h) The estimated total amount to be raised by municipal charges
compared with the previous financial year

T iCh 2019/20 2020/21 Change

e O arge
e = $'000 $'000 $'000 %
Municipal 5,685 5,903 218 3.83%

4.1.1(i) The rate or unit amount to be levied for each type of service rate or
charge under Section 162 of the Act compared with the previous financial

year
Per Service  Per Service Change
Type of Charge 2019/20 2020/21
$ $ $ %

Kerbside waste collection senice 240.00 241.50 1.50 0.63%
Recyclable collection service 118.00 122,50 450 3.81%
QOrganic waste collection senice 103.00 103.00

Environmental lewvy 120.00 120.00 - -
Total 581.00 587.00 6.00 1.03%

4.1.1(j) The estimated total amount to be raised by each type of service rate
or charge, and the estimated total amount to be raised by service rates and
charges, compared with the previous financial year

2019/20 2020/21 Change
Type of Charge §'000 $'000 $'000 %
Kerbside waste collection senice 3248 3,304 56 1.73%
Recyclable collection senice 1,560 1,642 82 5 26%
Organic waste collection senice 849 1,067 218 25.66%
Environmental lewy 1,959 1,994 35 1.79%
Total 7,616 8,007 391 5.14%
27
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MOIRA SHIRE COUNCIL BUDGET 2020/21 (cont'd)

ATTACHMENT No [1] - Moira Shire 2020-21 Budget

4.1.1(k) The estimated total amount to be raised by all rates and charges
compared with the previous financial year

. 2019/20 2020/21 Change
Rates Levied
$'000 $'000 $'000 Y

General rates 24,277 24,719 441 1.82%
Municipal levy 5,685 5,903 218 3.83%
Kerbside waste collection senvice 3,248 3,304 56 1.73%
Recyclable collection senice 1,560 1,642 82 5.26%
Organic waste collection semvice 849 1,067 218 25.66%
Enmvironmental levy 1,959 1,994 35 1.79%
Total Rates and charges 37,578 38,629 1,050 2.79%

4.1.1(l) Fair Go Rates System Compliance

Moira Shire Council is required to comply with the State Government’s Fair Go Rates System
(FGRS). The table below details the budget assumptions consistent with the requirements of
the Fair Go Rates System.

2019/20 2020/21
Total Rates $ 29,960,913 $ 30,619,062
Number of rateable properties 17,606 17,655
Base Average Rate $ 1,702 $ 1,734
Maximum Rate Increase (set by the State Government) 2.25% 2.00%
Capped Average Rate % 1,736
Maximum General Rates and Municipal Charges Revenue $ 30,755,422
Budgeted General Rates and Municipal Charges Revenue $ 29,960,913 $ 30,619,062

Budgeted Supplementary General Rates and Municipal Charges $ 191,462 $ 130,000

Budgeted Total Rates and Municipal Charges Revenue $ 30,152,375 $ 30,749,062

4.1.1(m) Any significant changes that may affect the estimated amounts to be
raised by rates and charges

There are no known significant changes which may affect the estimated amounts to be

raised by rates and charges. However, the total amount to be raised by rates and charges
may be affected by:

* The making of supplementary valuations (2020-21: $147,000 and 2019-20: $385,000)
s The variation of returned levels of value (e.g. valuation appeals)

* Changes of use of land such that rateable land becomes non-rateable land and vice
versa

* Changes of use of land such that residential land becomes business land and vice
versa.
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MOIRA SHIRE COUNCIL BUDGET 2020/21 (cont'd)

ATTACHMENT No [1] - Moira Shire 2020-21 Budget

4.1.1(n) Differential rates

General Rates

A general rate be declared in respect of the 2020-21 Financial Year.

It be further declared that the general rate be raised by the application of differential rates.
Each differential rate will be determined by multiplying the Capital Improved Value of
rateable land (categorised by the characteristics described below) by the relevant
percentages in Note 4.1.1(b).

Council believes each differential rate will contribute to the equitable and efficient carrying
out of council functions.

A differential rate be respectively declared for rateable land having the respective
characteristics specified below, which characteristics will form the criteria for each differential
rate so declared

a) Residential Building Land
Any land:
(iy on which a building designed or adapted for human occupation is erected; and
(ii) which does not have the characteristics of:
e Farm Building Land
¢« Commercial Building Land
e Industrial Building Land or
¢ Rural Residential Building Land.

b) Residential Vacant Land
Any land:
(iy on which no building designed or adapted for human occupation is erected; and
(i) which does not have the characteristics of:
¢ Farm Vacant Land,;
¢« Commercial Vacant Land,;
¢ Industrial Vacant Land; or
¢ Rural Residential Vacant Land.

c) Rural Building Land
Any land:
(i) which is more than two (2) and less than 10 hectares in area;
(i) which is located within a Rural Residential Zone or Zones under the Moira Planning
Scheme;
(i) on which a building designed or adapted for human occupation is erected; and
(iv) which is used by a primary production business that:
¢ does not have a significant and substantial commercial purpose or character;
« does naot seek to make a profit on a continuous and repetitive basis from its
activities on the land; and
¢ is not making a profit from its activities on the land or does not have a
reasonable prospect of making a profit from its activities on the land if it
continues to operate in the way that it is operating.
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d) Rural Vacant Land
Any land:
(i) which is more than two (2) and less than 10 hectares in area;
(il) which is located within a Rural Residential Zone or zones under the Moira Planning
Scheme;
(i) on which no building designed or adapted for human occupation is erected;
(iv) which is used by a primary production business that:

does not have a significant and substantial commercial purpose or character;
does not seek to make a profit on a continuous or repetitive basis from its
activities on the land;

is not making a profit from its activities on the land or does not have a
reasonable prospect of making a profit from its activities on the land if it
continues to operate in the way that it is operating.

e) Farm Building Land
Any land:
(i) on which a building designed or adapted for human occupation is erected; and
(i) is "farm land" within the meaning of section 3(1) of the Valuation of Land Act 1960.

f) Farm Vacant Land
Any land:
(i) on which no building designed or adapted for human occupation is erected; and
(i) is "farm land" within the meaning of section 3(1) of the Valuation of Land Act 1960

The respective uses and levels of each differential rate in relation to those respective types
or classes of land be those described in the schedule to this resolution; and
a) the relevant

(i) uses of;

ii) geagraphical locations of;

(
(iiiy planning scheme zonings of; and
(

iv) types of buildings on the respective types or classes of land be those identified in
the schedule to this resolution.

g) Commercial Building Land
Any land:
(i) on which a building designed or adapted for human occupation is erected,;
(i) which is used primarily for commercial purposes; and
(i) does not have the characteristics of:

Farm Building Land;

General Building Land,;
Industrial Building Land; or
Rural Residential Building Land.
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MOIRA SHIRE COUNCIL BUDGET 2020/21 (cont'd)

ATTACHMENT No [1] - Moira Shire 2020-21 Budget

h) Commercial Vacant Land

Any land:

(i) on which no building designed or adapted for human occupation is erected;

(il) which is, by reason of its zoning under the Moira Planning Scheme, capable of
being used primarily for commercial purposes,

(i) does not have the characteristics of:
e Farm Vacant Land,;
o General Vacant Land;
e |ndustrial Vacant Land; or
¢ Rural Residential Vacant Land.

i) Industrial Building Land
Any land:
(i) on which a building designed or adapted for human occupation has been erected;
(i} which is used primarily for industrial purposes; and
(iii) does not have the characteristics of:
¢ Farm Building Land;
¢ Commercial Building Land;
» General Building Land; or
¢ Rural Residential Building Land.

j) Industrial Vacant Land

Any land:

(iy on which no building designed or adapted for human occupation is erected;

(i) which is, by reason of its zoning under the Moira Planning Scheme, capable of
being used primarily for industrial purposes; and

(iii) does not have the characteristics of:
¢ Farm Vacant Land;
¢ Commercial Vacant Land;
¢ General Vacant Land; or
* Rural Residential Vacant Land

k) Cultural and Recreational Land

In accordance with section 4(1) of the Cultural and Recreational Lands Act 1963, the amount
of rates payable in respect of each rateable land to which the Act applies be determined by
multiplying the Capital Improved Value and that rateable land by the applicable Cultural and
Recreational cents in the dollar rate.

Municipal Charge

A municipal charge be declared in respect of the 2019/20 Financial Year.

The municipal charge be declared for the purpose of covering some of the administrative
costs of Council.

The municipal charge be in the sum of $355.20 for each rateable land (or part) in respect of
which a municipal charge may be levied.

It be confirmed that the municipal charge is declared in respect of all rateable land within the
municipal district in respect of which a municipal charge may be levied.
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Annual Service Charge

An annual service charge be declared in respect of the 2020/21 Financial Year.

The annual service charge be declared for the collection and disposal of refuse from land.
The annual service charge be in the sum of, and be based on the criteria, set out below:

(iy $241.50 per annum for each rateable land to which a kerbside waste collection
service is available;

(i) $122.50 per annum for each rateable land to which a recyclable collection service is
available;

(i) $103.00 per annum for each rateable land to which an organic waste collection
service is available;

(iv) $120.00 per annum Environmental Levy for each rateable land from which there is
capacity to generate waste, which can be deposited by a ratepayer or resident at a
landfill or waste transfer or disposal facility; except where:
¢ rateable land that is 'farm land' within the meaning of s 3(1) of the Valuation of

Land Act 1960 and is a 'single farm enterprise' within the meaning of section
179(4) of the Local Government Act 1989.

Rebates & Concessions

It be recorded that Council grants to each owner of rateable land who is an "eligible recipient”
within the meaning of the State Concessions Act 1986, a rebate as declared by the
Department of Health and Human Services, for the 2020/21 financial year this is a maximum

of $241.00

Incentives
No incentive be declared for early payment of the general rates, municipal charge and annual
service charge previously declared.

Payment

All rates and charges are to be paid in accordance with Section 167(1) and (2) of the Local
Government Act 1989. Moira Shire offers three alternative payment arrangements: Annual (15
February 2021); Quarterly (30 Sept 2020, 30 November 2020, 28 February 2021 and 31 May
2021); and 10 monthly payments (28 August 2020 to 28 May 2021).

Consequential
It be confirmed that, subject to sections 171 and 172 of the Local Government Act 1989,
Council will require a person to pay interest on any rates and charges which:

(iy that person is liable to pay;

(i) have not been paid by the date specified for their payment

The Team Leader Revenue be authorised to levy and recover the general rates, municipal
charge and annual service charges in accordance with the Local Government Act 1989
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MOIRA SHIRE COUNCIL BUDGET 2020/21 (cont'd)

ATTACHMENT No [1] - Moira Shire 2020-21 Budget

4.1.2 Statutory fees and fines

Budget Budget
2019?20 2020?21 Change
$°000 $°000 $°000 Yo
Town planning fees 362 385 23 6.35%
Building senices fees 514 486 (28) (5.53)%
Business registration fees 201 195 (8) (2.99)%
Animal registration fees and fines 185 201 16 8.67%
Property certificate fees 40 40 0 0.37%
Other statutory fees and fines 46 51 5 10.99%
Total statutory fees and fines 1,347 1,357 10 0.72%
4.1.3 User fees
Budget Budget
2019?20 2020?21 g
$'000 $'000 $'000 %

Leisure centre and recreation 26 26 - 0.0%
Waste management services 1,067 1,174 107 10.1%
Rent and other property income 155 144 (11) (7.1)%
Public facilities and park hire fees 325 263 (62) (19.2)%
Sundry works and works within road reserve fees a7 62 (34) (35.6)%
Caravan park charges 269 203 (66)  (24.5)%
Other user fees and charges 59 63 4 6.8%
Total user fees 1,997 1,935 (62) (3.1)%

The 2020-21 User Fees and Charges schedule as adopted by Council are detailed in

Appendix A
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ATTACHMENT No [1] - Moira Shire 2020-21 Budget

4.1.4 Grants

Grants are required by the Act and the Regulations to be disclosed in Council’'s annual

budget.

Budget Budget
2019/20 2020121
$000 $°000

Grants to be received in respect of the following:

Summary of Grants
Commonwealth funded grants
State funded grants
Total grants to be received

Variance

$'000 Yo

8,125 11,559 3433 423%
7.842 1,001 (6.843) (87.3)%
15,967 12,560 (3,407) (21.3)%

Budget Budget Variance
2019/20 2020/21
$°000 $'000 $'000 %

(a) Operating Grants
Recurrent - Commonweaith Government
Victoria Grants Commission 5,580 5,228 (353) (6.3)%
Recurrent - State Government
Community health 129 130 1 0.6%
Community safety 82 84 2 2.5%
Maternal and child health 343 348 5 1.5%
Recreation 29 29 - 0.0%
Total recurrent grants 6,163 5,818 (345)  (5.6)%
Non-Recurrent - State Government
Community health 17 - (17)  100.0%
Community safety 63 - (63) 100.0%
Economic development and tourism 12 - (12) 100.0%
Total non-recurrent grants 92 - (92) 100.0%
Total operating grants 6,255 5,818 (437)  (7.0)%
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Budget Budget Variance
2019/20 2020/21
$'000 $'000 $'000 Yo

(a) Capital Grants
Recurrent - Commonweaith Government
Roads to recovery 2,545 2,500 (45) (1.8)%
Total recurrent grants 2,545 2,500 (45) (1.8)%
Non-recurrent - Commonwealith Government
Recreation, leisure and community facilities - 450 450 100.0%
Roads - 720 720 100.0%
Buildings - 1.000 1,000  200.0%
Non-recurrent - State Government
Roads 2,188 - (2,188) 100.0%
Recreation, leisure and community facilities 4,980 2,070 (2,910) (58.4)%
Total non-recurrent grants 7,168 4,240 (5,098) (71.1)%
Total capital grants 9,713 6,740 (5,143) (53.0)%

4.1.5 Contributions

Budget Budget

2019120 202021 Change
$'000 $'000 $'000 %
Monetary 854 570 (284) (33.2)%
Non-monetary 200 200 - -
Total contributions 1,054 770 (284)  (26.91)%
4.1.6 Other income
Bud
20620 202001 Change
$°000 $°000 $'000 %
Interest on investments 590 350 (240) (40.7)%
Reimbursements and subsidies 23 24 1 3.4%
Legal costs recouped 190 81 (109) (57.4)%
Energyrebale scheme income 85 87 2 2.0%
Sale of recyclables income 80 80
Visitor Information Centre income 12 12
Volunteer serices - 353 353 100.0%
Otherincome 115 121 7 6.0%
Total other income 1,005 1,108 13 1.18%

The introduction of AASB 1058 Income of Not-for-Profit Entities requires Council to
recognise Volunteer Services from 1 July 2019 for services provided by the volunteers that
Council would normally undertake. This income is matched by a corresponding expenditure
recognition in Other Expenses.
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MOIRA SHIRE COUNCIL BUDGET 2020/21 (cont'd)

ATTACHMENT No [1] - Moira Shire 2020-21 Budget

4.1.7 Employee costs

Budget Budget

2019/20 2020/21 Change

$'000 $'000 $°000 %
Wages and salaries 18,797 19,422 625 3.3%
WorkCover 310 240 (70} (22.6)%
Apprentices and Trainees 521 597 76 14.6%
Superannuation 1,722 1,761 39 2.3%
Fringe benefits tax 210 200 (10)  (4.8)%
Other employee costs 378 372 (7)  (1.8)%
Total employee costs 21,938 22,592 654 2.98%
4.1.8 Materials and services

Budget Budget

2019?20 2020?21 Change

$°000 $°000 §'000 %

Building and facilities management 933 934 1 0.2%
Community health and safety 863 782 B1) (9.49)%
Community sendces and events 661 836 176 26.6%
Council contributions, donations and grants 924 800 (124) (13.4)%
Economic development and tourism 911 1,112 2001 221%
Engineering design and management 510 520 10 1.9%
Emronmental management 418 609 190 455%
Finance and administration 1,458 1,511 53 3.7%
Governance kx| 794 462  139.5%
Information technology 1,864 1,782 (82) (44)%
Infrastructure and asset management 715 660 (55) (7 6)%
Insurance 525 755 230 438%
Library senices 793 809 16 20%
Parks and gardens maintenance 1,064 1,043 (10)  (1.0)%
Planning and building senices 349 274 (79) (21.5)%
Plant and fleet maintenance 2,425 1,924 (501) (20.7)%
Paals and recreation 942 902 40) (4.3)%
Roads, footpaths and drainage maintenance 3,227 3,273 46 1.4%
Waste management 4,049 4,508 459 11.3%
Total materials and services 22,950 23,827 877 3.82%
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ATTACHMENT No [1] - Moira Shire 2020-21 Budget

4.1.9 Depreciation

Budget Budget

2019/20  2020/21 Change
$’000 $’000 $°000 %
Property 1,886 2,012 126 6.7%
Plant and equipment 885 1,032 147 16.6%
Infrastructure 7,49 8,146 655 8.7%
Total Depreciation 10,262 11,190 928 9.04%

4.1.10 Amortisation - Right of use assets

As a result of the introduction of AASB 16 Leases, the amortisation of right-of-use assets
have been recognised as outlined in the table below. Right-of-use assets are assets which
Council has direct control over where and how those assets are used.

Budget Budget

2019/20  2020/21 Change

$°000 $°000 $'000 %
Right of use assets - 489 489 0.0%
Total Amortisation - right of use assets - 489 489 0.0%
4.1.11 Other expenses

aotom  gmop  Chanee
$°000 $°000 $'000 %

Auditors' remuneration - VAGO - audit of the financial statements, 50 - 0.0%
performance statement and grant acquitals
Auditors' remuneration - Internal 60 60 0.0%
Councillors' allowances 316 322 6 2 0%
Interest on unwinding of discount on prowisions 300 300 0.0%
\olunteer services - 353 353 100.0%
Other expenses 80 76 (4) (4.4)%
Total Other expenses 816 1,171 355 43.52%

The introduction of AASB 1058 Income of Not-for-Profit Entities requires Council to

recognise Volunteer Services from 1 July 2019 for services provided by the volunteers that
Council would normally undertake. This expenditure is matched by a corresponding income

recognition in Other Income.
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MOIRA SHIRE COUNCIL BUDGET 2020/21 (cont'd)

ATTACHMENT No [1] - Moira Shire 2020-21 Budget

4.2 Borrowings

The table below shows information on borrowings specifically required by the Regulations.

2019/20 2020/21
$°000 $’000
Total amount borrowed as at 30 June of the prior year 2,449 1,461
Total amount proposed to be borrowed - 5,200
Total amount projected to be redeemed (988) (578)
Total amount of borrowings as at 30 June 1,461 6,083

4.3 Leases by category

As a result of the introduction of AASB 16 Leases, right-of-use assets and lease liabilities

have been recognised as outlined in the table below.

Budget Budget
2019/20 2020/21

$°000 $'000
Right-of-use assets
Heawy Plant 2,345
IT Equipment 131
Total right-of-use assets - 2,476
Lease liabilities
Current lease Liabilities
Plant and equipment 981
Total current lease liabilities - 981
Non-current lease liabilities
Plant and equipment - 1,495
Total non-current lease liabilities - 1,495
Total Lease Liabilities - 2,476

Where the interest rate applicable to a lease is not expressed in the lease agreement,
Council applies the average incremental borrowing rate in the calculation of lease liabilities.

The current incremental borrowing rate is 5.39%.
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MOIRA SHIRE COUNCIL BUDGET 2020/21 (cont'd)

ATTACHMENT No [1] - Moira Shire 2020-21 Budget

4.4 Reserves

Other Reserves
Moira Shire maintains the following reserves for future capital works:

+ Recreational open space reserve - established in accordance with the Subdivision Act
1988 and used tc develop strategically located parks and reserves for the benefit of the
residents in the municipality.

« Car parking reserve - established under the Planning and Environment Act 1987 and
used to provide adequate car parking spaces within the municipality.

+ Net gain native vegetation reserve - established under the Flanning and Environment
Act 1987 and used to fulfil Council's obligation concerning planting of native vegetation.

« Botts Road — Murray Valley Highway intersection reserve - established to allocate
funds provided by developers to improving the intersection of Botts Road and the Murray
Valley Highway in Yarrawonga.

« Yarrawonga Wetlands drainage reserve - established to allocate funds provided by
developers to improving the drainage within the Yarrawonga wetlands.

+ Carried forward capital works reserve — established to recognise capital works
previously approved by Council in prior year's capital works programs but not completed
at the end of the financial year.

39

Moira Shire Council Page 54 of 121



WEDNESDAY, 24 JUNE 2020

ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING
ITEM NO: 9.2.3

MOIRA SHIRE COUNCIL BUDGET 2020/21 (cont'd)

ATTACHMENT No [1] - Moira Shire 2020-21 Budget

CORPORATE

OFFICER REPORTS FOR DETERMINATION
FILE NO: F19/504

4. A WELL RUN COUNCIL

or
00Z°'s ZLELL 28k g2t 0 ovL's 18L°8 Szv 8G6°L 999°L1L 98.°2¢ lejoL
osr'lL goc'e - 2ze - 0Z8'c 216’ 05e 8c9’l 190t 096°LL ainjonisedu)
GLL'L 78k - - - 196 - - /€€ 86Z'L tewdinb3 pue jueld
05/’ 88’ 0¢ 026'L 598'L G/ 0ze 892’/ 825'6 Aypadoug
sBuimoulog 000$ 0005 000.$ 000.$ 000.$ 000,$ 000.$ 000.$ 000.$ 000.% 350D

Buipuny sajeg afieys suonngUoD sjueID |emauay uosuedxy speibdn MaN 128loid
[1punog jessy |epadg

$324nos Buipun4 sadfy sumipuadxa }assy
%eT L6V 98/'22 88222 lejoL
%S 0C 980'¢ 096'L1 7266 alnjoniselu|
%06 801 862°L 0611 juswdinba pue jue|d
%(L¥1) (2v9'L) 825'6 vILLL Apedoig
% 000.% 000.$ 000.$
Lz/ozoz 0Z/610Z
sBueyd 1abpng 1e6png

Aewwng LGy

1ebpnq jusind sy} o} 8le PasO|ISIP SHIOAN
‘sainos Buipuny pue edA} sinyipusdxe Aq peljisse|d ‘1eak | Z/0Z0zZ ey} Jo} usyeuspun aq [m yey) spoeload syiom ended ey jo Buis)| e syuesaid uoljoes siy |

NYHOO0Hdd SMHOM T1VLIdVO §'F

Page 55 of 121

Moira Shire Council



WEDNESDAY, 24 JUNE 2020

ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING

ITEM NO: 9.2.3

134
0sl'e 628'C 0g 0Z6'L | 598'L Sl 0ze 89Z'L | 826'6 Iejo Auadoug
oLy oLy o |e30 ] suswanoidu) pue

00E 00€E 00E welbold [emaual yueq aana
ool 00k 00L wesBoid [emauar wajsks uonebi
0L 0L oL welboid [emaual pigjeg

sjusLwaAcldw) pue

0sl'e 6L¥'E og 0Z6'} | SS¥') SL oze 89Z'L | 8LL'6 [eso) sBuipjing

0g 02 0g SULIOJE|d puE S13ppeT] A12Jes (|BH YefamoLe,
0Fg 026 | 0957 | 095°¢ wnipe)s spodsynyy eBuomelie,,
054°€ 009 0sey | 05E'Y TIBIar] EBUOMBIIE A,
ol o] al welboid uonejielsul Jejos g Asusiay 3 Abisu3 - uoneasdsy g syodsg
0Z 14 ['[4 weiboid emaual jue | ondss
00e 00¢ 00¢ {uonnNguIuog PUNoD) SIBNI0 ] - WEeIgoD aAIasay Hoos
0og 002 00g wielbold [emaual s1alo] Jlgng
oL 0l 0l apelfbidn Buiioos pue Buneay ||[eH UM | UesInuiny
0g g 09 09 100y woosabuey) |0od Buluuimg yexanuny
GE SE GE welbold |[emaual |lem sbuiping jedioungy
00€ 00g 00€ welboud [emaual ja)io} sBuiping [ediiuniy
0§ 05 5 welbold [emaual jool sBuiping jedioungy
8/l 8/l /1 welboid [emaual bunured sBuiping [edioiungy
06 06 06 welboid [emauai [eaiueydaw sBwpIng [edioungy
6 6 6 21epdn 121siBal A=y sBuipiing [edioungy
05 05 05 |emaual adidumop pue Bulaynb sBuiping [edisiuny
€L £e £g weiboid [emaual Buuooy sbuiping jedioungy
9zz 92z 922 welboid [emaual ino i sbuiping [edidiuniy
El2 S S uBisap aoeds [unwwos - anasay 22y ebunjey
0§ 05 05 0Z-610Z Ue|d uonanpay suaissiwg ajelodio) sy} bunuawsiduy
05 05 05 |emaual acuendwo) Al9jes [ealda)g
£LZ €lZ cl? s wdoRAapal (JA) 21U UOHE WO JOJISIA WEIQOD)
05 05 05 BuliapUal anua7) 27 WEIGDD)
0g g 0g [EMBUS] 533IA18S [BUassH Buiping
S¢ [+74 5z apelbdn pue ucisuedxa (D3H4g) 2w uoleanp3 pue 2bejiay Jsaio4 yeweg

sBuiping

Aedoig

MOIRA SHIRE COUNCIL BUDGET 2020/21 (cont'd)

ATTACHMENT No [1] - Moira Shire 2020-21 Budget

CORPORATE

OFFICER REPORTS FOR DETERMINATION
FILE NO: F19/504

4. A WELL RUN COUNCIL

000.$ 000.$ 0005 0003 000.$ 0003  000.$ 000.$ 000.$ 0005 0005
sBumouiog Buipuny sejes abfieys suonnguiuo) siuels [emausy uoisuedxy spesBdn meN  1s0)
12unoy jessy |eleds 1slold

saainos Buipuny sadA} ainjipuadxa jassy

1ebBpng sylopp [ended Z'Gp

Page 56 of 121

Moira Shire Council



WEDNESDAY, 24 JUNE 2020

ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING
ITEM NO: 9.2.3

MOIRA SHIRE COUNCIL BUDGET 2020/21 (cont'd)

ATTACHMENT No [1] - Moira Shire 2020-21 Budget

CORPORATE

OFFICER REPORTS FOR DETERMINATION
FILE NO: F19/504

4. A WELL RUN COUNCIL

[47
SLL'L | 28) 196 18¢ 862'1L [e10 ) Juswidink3 pue jue|d
20L°L |28l 16 122 v8Z'L |ese] uswdinbg pue Liauyoep ue|q
05 05 05 SDUBUSJUIELL SPEOY - SUOHE|[EISU| YUE | I13)E A
GEL SElL GEL 2)SEM-2 BUIAOLU 10 J3|pLELaIa |
85 S €9 €9 00005 2§ < UE|d [[BWS Jo Juswiade|day
BEL L1 14 144 S3|21UaA 12214 b1 Jo Juawadelday
8.5 09 829 ge9 weld AaeaH Jo wawade|day
05 05 05 Buissa004d )SEM [BILIISNPUI PUE [BI2I3LLLIOD J0) UE|]
G G g | ||BLIS Map
G5 GG 56 19]/0Y - Ul AhEaH MBN
43 Zr o wawdinba Buiuespd [equass3 — sanioe4 onenby
wawdinb3 pue Aauyaeyy ued
[ [ [ 2301 @Jmiuing g sBuniig ‘seunixig
¥l ¥l i weboid jemaual ainyung a0
aInuuIng g sbumi4 “sainjxiq
wiswdinbg pue uelg

000:$ 000$ 0005 0003 000:$ 000,$ 0008 000.$ 000,$ 0008 0008
sBumousiog Bulpuny sejes abieys suopnguiuon siueis |emauay uoisuedxy espesBdn meN  1s0)
[12uno) 13ssy [eloads j93loug

saainos Buipung sadA) ainypuadxa jassy

Page 57 of 121

Moira Shire Council




WEDNESDAY, 24 JUNE 2020

ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING

ITEM NO: 9.2.3

MOIRA SHIRE COUNCIL BUDGET 2020/21 (cont'd)

ATTACHMENT No [1] - Moira Shire 2020-21 Budget

CORPORATE

OFFICER REPORTS FOR DETERMINATION
FILE NO: F19/504

4. A WELL RUN COUNCIL

1374
1S1 11 144 G6 161 |e10] sadeasjaans pue saoeds uadQ ‘syled
0z 0Z 114 wielboid jemaual ainwng 19205
St Gt 5 Bunubi| 19a0s UCHaWENS
0¢ 0e 0¢ weaBoud [emaual aInjiuin 4 yed
05 (i) 0% wawdopraq ueld ydesuog axe yexinwiny
44 [44 44 ¢z abe)s apeibdn Bunybl| 1220s uleW elleyleN
sadedsiEals pue sateds uadQ syled
oz 0oe 0ps ors e30] |2UuBY] pUE glay
(0,74 00€ 0FS [ Welbold |emalal [puleysy g giay]
|aUUBLS) pUE qiay]
0SL os¥ | oog 05 osg | 00Z°} [ej0 1 sAema|ah pue syjediooy
00g 05 05 00L s/ |ten} wisunoy Gunjjesm BuioAa sulwenng o} ebuomeie
051 051 05k | abels - |lemaual yedioo4 g0 yexnwny
0st 0S| 051 welbold Jualuysantl edioo] maN
051 05k 051 weliboid |[emaual yyedioo
sAema|oAD) pue syedioo-|
oSt S0P'L (445 G68 00z 2£9 0S¥’ | LLL'E [eyo1 aBeujeig
0oL 0oL 00k welboid [emaual sdwing
00& 002 00¢ awayos uonebiiw poo)4 yexynwnp
00€ 00g 00g [emaual uiejy Buisiy Weigod) 1S [|Suwasy
0§ 05 05 weboid |emaual siid 2beueI]
ool 00L 00L weiboud [emaual adid abeuleiq
051 051 ock wel1boid [emaual 4 pue adid abeuelqg
00¢ 002 00¢ Py Spod 18 HAW Japun apeibdn paang
0sl 0sL 09l welboid [lemaual pannd
GE GE GE uonewojne dwnd g abejs - sdwng apipy 1ounog
05k'L 05kl | 0St'L ue|J abeuiel(] 1seg Weiqoy)
08 (443 20k Z0F sylom abeulRIp Juadsaln) euole)
0g 0€ g apelbdn abeulelp peoy snog
abeuelg
06 0g oy 08 |e3o] saBpug
0§ 05 s welboid |[emauas sabpug
OF o F weliboid sayoecidde pue seipient sabpug
sabpug
ainjanJiselju|
000:$ 0004 0005 000.$ 000.$  000.$ 000.$ 000, 000, 000.$
sBumosiog Buipuny ssjes abiey) suonnguuon siuel [emausay ucisuedxy apesBdn maN 1s0)
112uney essy |ejoeds 1e8foud

saoinos Buipung

sadA) aamipuadxa Jassy

Page 58 of 121

Moira Shire Council



WEDNESDAY, 24 JUNE 2020

ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING

ITEM NO: 9.2.3

F19/504
4. A WELL RUN COUNCIL

MOIRA SHIRE COUNCIL BUDGET 2020/21 (cont'd)

ATTACHMENT No [1] - Moira Shire 2020-21 Budget

OFFICER REPORTS FOR DETERMINATION

CORPORATE
FILE NO

osy'L 8929 (444 0zZ8'c | ZLB'S 0se 8¢9’} 190y | 096'L} |eio L aimonJisedju|

0g og 0g |e30 ] sjessy Jayip
0g 0g TV Jog weiboud |emaual abeubig

SIAssy BUIO

006 006 | 006 |e1o] uawabeuep aisepm
006 006 006 JIpUET WEIGOD 6 (|27 JO UoRINISUoD)

wawsbeuel 31seM)

gel’l 026'Z | 00¥'E ¥65 199 GS9'y 2301 speoy
Gl Sil G/l uolssauddns }snp peoy abpug eudnjn
0g 0 0g sjusLlaAcIdW R3jes SpeO] 5013 allyg
008 008 008 weibBoid uoyonlysuodal peoy pajeasg
0S¢ 05g 0S¢ weiboid Buyaied 1olep) - speoy
005 005 0001 000 1 welpoid [E3asay SNOulUNjg - SPEOY
00 | 002 00e wiesboid fepang yeydsy - speoy
52 4 GZ Runoey a1ed pabe ay) o) Juadelpe EBUOMELIEA 1S alUnH BuIssol)) Uelysapag
0cl 8 9e£9 act UOI}23SI3JUl Py UBYINLLNN pue py Bulien
00g 002 00z weiboid 13aysay Jspnoys - speay [sAeIS
0og 0og 008 009 welboid j9aysay - speoy |PneID)
0s 00e | 05¢ 0s¢ (sx10Mm [EMAURL 10}) [B3S [BUI]
59 S9 59 UesInLunp J@ans auld - uaissalddns ysng
OF o (i ebuoMmeLIe ), 133115 SUOLLJIS) PUE pEOY Spoo Jo apelbdn uondasisiul oy ubisag
002 002 00e apelbdn eBUOMELIEA SIS EJ2N|E|S)] PUE EIDEDY

Speoy

190°} 0g1 189 05l 00€ S0l Lz’ |eio) sap|ioed Aunwwo ) pue ainsjaT ‘|eucjiealoay
051 0GL 00E 00g apelbdn yedyseds ebuomelie,
¥l ¥l ¥l weiboid [emaual - [00d eBuomELEA
05 05 Qs EDUOMELIBA HIE ApaUUaM Ul punaibAe|d 15a0S YouAd 1e Dag um)
09 0G 09 SJUBLLISSASSE LoNIpued ainanhsenul adid pue gnj (004 WIMS
051 051 0sk SHIOM [EMBUS] 1IN0Y) [[BgiaN UoaWiens
051 [2]3 0st YEXINLINY - UDISUSIXS YIBd S1EYS
OF 14 O welboid [emaual IES apRYS
0L 0k ol welboid mamal Bunybin uoneasnay
09 09 09 weibold |emaual Juawdinb3 punoibielq
el £l €l wieiboid [emaual - anuan) anenby yexdniunpy
/ 7 N welbold [emaual - |004 BIEUIEN
S St S welqoy syybiay Aeunyy - punoibAed mau |le1sy|
ecl £el ¢l weiboid [emaual - [004 WeIqoD
0¢ 0Z (114 welboid |emauzl Dgg
[ 0/L 0Ll Zwieiboid |emaual saniioe Jpenby

safioeq AUnWwwoy) pue ainsia euoneanay

ainjanJiseyju|

000:$ 0004 0005 000.$ 000.$ 000.$  000.$ 000.$ 000, 000, 000.$
sBumosiog Buipuny ssjes abiey) suonnguuon siuel [emausay ucisuedxy apesBdn maN 1s0)
11uney essy |ejoeds 1e8foud

sa24nos Buipung sadA) sunmpuadxa Jassy

Page 59 of 121

Moira Shire Council



ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING
WEDNESDAY, 24 JUNE 2020

14

Jeah |ejoueul au) Joj jje)s Jusueuuad jo ‘ou abelare

ITEM NO: 9.2.3

F19/504
4. A WELL RUN COUNCIL
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STRATEGIC RESOURCE PLAN 2020 - 2024

RECOMMENDATION

That Council adopt the Strategic Resource Plan 2020 — 2024.

1. Executive Summary
This report seeks council approval of the updated Strategic Resource Plan 2020-2024.

Each year council reviews the Strategic Resource Plan (SRP) to update the four-year
outlook and to reflect the annual Budget. The 2020/21 budget should also be read in
conjunction with the four-year Strategic Resource Plan (SRP).

The SRP proposes Council will deliver $74 million of works over the four-year period to
2024 and identifies priority investment areas including more than $14 million of new and
upgraded infrastructure with investment in drainage and flood mitigation works.

The updated SRP was provided for community feedback during April and no submissions
were received.

The Strategic Resource Plan 2020-2024 is attached for Council consideration and once
adopted the SRP will be incorporated into the 2017 — 2021 Council Plan that will be
presented for council’s consideration at the June Ordinary Council Meeting.

2. Background and Options

The SRP identifies the financial and non-financial resources required to deliver the
Council Plan over the four years of the plan.

Highlights
Across the four years of the Plan
o $74 Million of capital works will be delivered achieving an average asset renewal

target of 80%.

As council funds the significant capital works program, council’s liquidity will decline
but remains within acceptable levels.

Council’s underlying operating position will continue to improve.

Council will invest nearly $18 million in local roads and bridges.

Almost $20 million will be invested buildings including a new library and multisport
stadium for Yarrawonga

$6 million in Council cash has been allocated for township flood protection including
progressing the Numurkah Floodstudy recommendations

In preparing the review of the SRP Council considers the principles of sound financial
management prescribed in the Act, being to:

e Prudently manage financial risks relating to debt, assets and liabilities

e Provide reasonable stability in the level of rate burden

o Consider the financial effects of council decisions on future generations

e Provide full, accurate and timely disclosure of financial information.

3. Financial Implications

The SRP ensures appropriate consideration of future financial and non-financial
resources to support delivery of the council plan.
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STRATEGIC RESOURCE PLAN 2020 - 2024 (cont'd)

4, Risk Management
The review of the SRP is prepared in accordance with the Local Government Act.

5.  Conflict of Interest Considerations
No officer conflicts of interest were identified in the preparation of this report.

0. Conclusion

The Strategic Resource Plan 2020 — 2024 is provided for consideration and adoption by
council.

Attachments
1 Strategic Resouce Plan 2020 - 2024
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ATTACHMENT No [1] - Strategic Resouce Plan 2020 - 2024

Moira Shire
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ITEM NO: 9.2.4

STRATEGIC RESOURCE PLAN 2020 - 2024 (cont'd)

ATTACHMENT No [1] - Strategic Resouce Plan 2020 - 2024

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This Appendix contains the financial statements that follow:

Comprehensive Income Statement;

Balance Sheet;

Statement of Changes in Equity;

Statement of Cash Flows;

Statement of Capital Works;

Statement of Human Resources;

Summary of Planned Capital Works Expenditure;
Summary of Planned Human Resources Expenditure;
Financial Performance Indicators.

These statements are required under Division 1, Part & of the Local Government (Planning and
Reporting) Regulations 2014.

The Regulations commenced on 18 April 2014.

Regulations 13(2), 16(1) and 17(2) came into operation on July 1 2015.

Page 2 of 11

Moira Shire Council

Page 90 of 121




CORPORATE ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING
OFFICER REPORTS FOR DETERMINATION WEDNESDAY, 24 JUNE 2020

FILE NO: F17/620 ITEM NO: 9.2.4
4. A WELL RUN COUNCIL

STRATEGIC RESOURCE PLAN 2020 - 2024 (cont'd)

ATTACHMENT No [1] - Strategic Resouce Plan 2020 - 2024

1.1 Comprehensive Income Statement

For the four years ending 30 June 2024

Budget Budget Strategic Resource Plan
201920 2020121 2021/22  2022/23 2023/24
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Income
Rates and charges 37,524 39,072 40,149 41,309 42 487
Statutory fees and fines 1,347 1,357 1,398 1,440 1483
User fees 1,997 1,936 1,994 2,054 2116
Grants - Operating 6,255 5818 11,789 12,080 12,276
Grants - Capital 9713 6,740 4095 8,545 6,945
Contributions - monetary 854 420 100 100 100
Contributions - non-monetary 200 200 200 200 200
Net gain/(loss) on disposal of property,
infrastructure, plant and equipment (117) iz (225) (275) (275)
_Sha re of net profits/(losses) of associates and (10) (10) 79 80 81
joint ventures
Cther income 1,095 1,108 1,064 983 988
Total Income 58,858 56,477 60,644 66,516 66,400
Expenses
Employee costs (21,939) (22591) (22930) (23274) (23623)
Materials and services (22,950)  (23,258) (23,735) (24,221) (24,716)
Bad and doubtful debts (10) (10) (14) (10) (10)
Depreciation (10.262) (11,190) (10,622) (10,653) (11,207)
Amortisation - Right of use assets - (489) (489) (489) (489)
Borrowing costs (154) (93) (58) (55) (43)
Finance costs - leases - (80) (80) (80) (80)
Other expenses (816) (1,171) (1,024) (1,063) (1,099)
Total Expenses (56,131) (58,882) (58952) (59,844) (61,268)
Surplusi(deficit) for the year 2727 (2,405) 1,692 6,672 5132
Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to sumplus
or deficit in future periods:
Net asset revaluation increment /(decrement) 4892  (35962) 12173 12,491 12,899
Total comprehensive result 7619  (38,367) 13865 19,163 18,031
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ATTACHMENT No [1] - Strategic Resouce Plan 2020 - 2024

1.2 Budgeted Balance Sheet

For the four years ending 30 June 2024

Budget Budget Strategic Resource Plan
2019/20 202021  2021/22 2022123  2023/24
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 30,024 28,077 25,750 23936 22,438
Trade and other receivables 4970 4750 3,549 3638 3,742
Inventories 550 575 578 581 584
Total current assets 35,544 33,402 29 877 28,156 26,764
Non-current assets
Trade and other receivables 1,950 -
Investments in associates and joint ventures 950 975 1,004 1034 1,085
Property, infrastructure, plant & equipment 598,288 608,669 ©624571 644955 664,186
Right-of-use assets 2,476 2476 2476 2,476
Intangible asset 2,000 2,000 2,000 2,000 2,000
Total non-current assets 602,788 614,120 630,051 650465 669,728
Total assets 638,332 647,522 659929 678621 696,491
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 3,000 3,150 2,199 2244 2,282
Trust funds and deposits 750 725 725 725 725
Provisions 4,500 4,400 4,350 4350 4,350
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings 578 629 774 829 520
Lease liabilities 957 957 957 957
Total current liabilities 8,828 9,861 9,005 9,105 8,834
Non-current liabilities
Provisions 13,000 12,375 12,731 13,045 13,366
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings 883 5,454 4,495 361 3,400
Lease liabilities - 1,519 1,519 1519 1,519
Total non-current liabilities 13,883 19,348 18,745 18,175 18,285
Total liabilities 22,7111 29,209 27,750 27279 27,119
Net assets 615621 618,313 632,178 651341 669,372
Equity
Accumulated surplus 209539 2481193 249885 256,556 261,689
Reserves 406,082 370120 382293 394785 407683
Total equity 615621 618,313 632,178 651341 669,372
Page 4 of 11
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STRATEGIC RESOURCE PLAN 2020 - 2024 (cont'd)

ATTACHMENT No [1] - Strategic Resouce Plan 2020 - 2024

1.3 Budgeted Statement of Changes in Equity

For the four years ending 30 June 2024

Accumulated  Revaluation Other
Total Surplus Reserve Reserves
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
2019720
Balance at beginning of the financial year 556,115 199,021 355,447 1,647
Surplus/(deficit) for the year 2727 2727 - -
Net asset revaluation increment/(decrement) 48,958 - 48,958 -
Transfer (to)from reserves 7,821 7,791 - 30
Balance at end of financial year 615,621 209,539 404,405 1,677
2020121
Balance at beginning of the financial year 609,821 203,739 404,405 1677
Surplus/(deficit) for the year 2,799 2,799 - -
Net asset revaluation increment/(decrement) (36,082) - (36,082) -
Transfer (to)from reserves 41,775 41,655 - 120
Balance at end of financial year 618,313 248,193 368,323 1,797
2021722
Balance at beginning of the financial year 618,679 248 559 368,323 1,797
Surplus/(deficit) for the year 1,326 1,326 - -
Net asset revaluation increment/(decrement) 12,053 - 12,053 -
Transfer (to)from reserves 120 - - 120
Balance at end of financial year 632,179 249,885 380,376 1,917
2022123
Balance at beginning of the financial year 632,549 250,256 380,376 1,917
Surplus/(deficit) for the year 6,301 6,301 - -
Net asset revaluation increment/(decrement) 12,371 - 12,371 -
Transfer (to)from reserves 120 - - 120
Balance at end of financial year 651,342 256,557 392,748 2,037
2023124
Balance at beginning of the financial year 651,719 256,934 392,748 2,037
Surplus/(deficit) for the year 4,755 4,755 - -
Net asset revaluation increment/(decrement) 12,778 - 12,778 -
Transfer (to)/from reserves 120 - - 120
Balance atend of financial year 669,372 261,689 405,526 2,157
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STRATEGIC RESOURCE PLAN 2020 - 2024 (cont'd)

ATTACHMENT No [1] - Strategic Resouce Plan 2020 - 2024

1.4 Budgeted Statement of Cash Flows

For the four years ending 30 June 2024

Budget Budget Strategic Resource Plan
2019/20 202021 202122  2022/23  2023/24
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
hflows Inflows Inflows hflows Inflows
(Cutfiows) (Outflows) (Cutflows) (Cutflows) (Outflows)

Cash flows from operating activities

Rates and charges 37,924 39,276 41395 41,511 42,711
Statutory fees and fines 1,352 1,450 1441 1,447 1,491
User fees 2,030 2,550 2,056 2,064 2127
Grants - operating 12,055 6,852 12,155 12,139 12,341
Grants - capital 8,053 7,940 4222 8,587 6,982
Contributions - monetary 854 390 100 100 100
Interest received 612 800 285 182 185
Other receipts 407 1,060 806 805 828
Net GST refund / payment - 3,500 2,896 3,046 3,217
Emplovee costs (21,938) (22,100) (24581) (24,471) (24,844)
Materials and services (22949) (22)500) (26056) (26,067) (26,595)
Trust funds and deposits repaid (21) (50) - - -
Other payments (516) (750) (770) (788) (818)

Net cash provided by/(used in) operating

activities 17,863 18,418 13949 18,555 17,703

Cash flows from investing activities
Payments for property, infrastructure, plant
and equipment

Proceeds from sale of property, infrastructure,
plant and equipment

Net cash provided by/(used in) investing
activities

(19,850)  (25,650) (15728) (19,811) (18,983)

1,015 807 325 325 325

(18,835)  (24843) (15403) (19.486) (18538)

Cash flows from financing activities

Finance costs (154) (93) (58) (55) 43)
Proceeds from borrowings - 5,200 - - -
Repayment of borrowings (988) (629) (814) (829) (520)

Net cash provided by/(used in) financing

activities (1,142) 4478 872) (884) (563)

Netincreasel{decrease)in cash & cash
equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of
the financial year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of
the financial year

(2,114) (1,947) (2,327) (1,814) (1,498)

32,138 30,024 28,077 25,750 23,936

30,024 28,077 25750 23,936 22,438
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STRATEGIC RESOURCE PLAN 2020 - 2024 (cont'd)

ATTACHMENT No [1] - Strategic Resouce Plan 2020 - 2024

1.5 Budgeted Statement of Capital Works

For the four years ending 30 June 2024

Budget  Budget Strategic Resource Plan
2019/20 202021 2021/22 2022123 2023124
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Property
Land improvements 1,012 410 3596 9,463 5,862
Total land 1,012 410 3,596 9463 6,882
Buildings 10,162 9,118 2,555 1,581 1,539
Total buildings 10,162 9,118 2,555 1,581 1,539
Total property 11,174 9,528 6,151 11,044 8,421
Plant and equipment
Plant, machinery and equipment 1,187 1,284 952 929 957
Fixtures, fittings and furniture 3 14 13 14 14
Total plant and equipment 1,190 1,298 965 943 971
Infrastructure
Roads 6,532 4,655 3,568 3,587 5,842
Bridges 90 90 54 56 58
Footpaths and cycleways 300 1,200 734 379 325
Drainage 1,360 3,177 1,744 1,146 919
Kerb and channel 550 540 800 830 860
Recreational, leisure and community facilities 692 1,211 237 203 223
Waste management 310 900 - - -
Parks, open space and streetscapes 60 167 189 195 201
Off street car parks - - 150 450 -
Other infrastructure 30 30 33 38 43
Total infrastructure 9,924 11,960 7,509 6,883 8,473
Total capital works expenditure 22,288 22,786 14,625 18,870 17,865
Represented by:
New asset expenditure 9478 11,666 2862 660 150
Asset renewal expenditure 8,193 8,737 9415 8,661 8,905
Asset expansion expenditure 505 425 893 7055 5400
Asset upgrade expenditure 4112 1,958 1,455 2,494 3,410
Total capital works 22,288 22,786 14,625 18,870 17,865
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4. A WELL RUN COUNCIL

ITEM NO: 9.2.4

STRATEGIC RESOURCE PLAN 2020 - 2024 (cont'd)

ATTACHMENT No [1] - Strategic Resouce Plan 2020 - 2024

1.6 Budgeted Statement of Human Resources

For the four years ending 30 June 2024

Staff expenditure
Employee costs - operating
Employee costs - capital
Total staff expenditure

Staff numbers
Employees - operating
Employees - capital
Total staff numbers

Page 8 of 11

Strategic Resource Plan
Budget Budget Projections
2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/123 2023/24
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

20,467 21,080 21,396 21,7117 22,043
170 170 173 176 180
20,637 21,250 21,569 21,893 22,223
FTE FTE FTE FTE FTE
217.7 218.6 21886 218.6 2186
2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0
219.7 220.6 220.6 220.6 220.6
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STRATEGIC RESOURCE PLAN 2020 - 2024 (cont'd)

ATTACHMENT No [1] - Strategic Resouce Plan 2020 - 2024

1.7 Budgeted Summary of Planned Capital Works
Expenditure

Asset expenditure fypes Funding sources
Special Asset Council
Project  New  Upgrade Expansion Renewal ~Grants  Confributions Charge Sales funding
Cost$'000 $000  §000  §000  §'o00  §$000 §000  §000 $000 $000 Borrowings

Property 9528 7266 30 1966 1920 30 - - 388 3,750
Plentand Equpment 1.2 3% - - o - - 181115
nfrastructure 190 4061 1638 B0 5912 380 - M- 5389 1,450
Total 2,786 11,666 1,958 45 8738 5740 0| 18 12 5,200
Page 9 of 11
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STRATEGIC RESOURCE PLAN 2020 - 2024 (cont'd)

ATTACHMENT No [1] - Strategic Resouce Plan 2020 - 2024

1.8 Budgeted Summary of Planned Human Resources

Expenditure
Comprises
Budget Permanent Casual Temporary
2020/21 Full Time  Part Time
Department $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Building, Safety and Amenity 1,701 1,195 342 81 84
Community Development 2,264 1,011 1,103 149 -
Construction and Assets 2,004 1.897 - 78 29
Customer and Communications 1,227 806 334 87 -
Economic Development 1,101 717 231 140 12
Emvironmental Senices 265 96 169 - -
Finance 831 609 142 16 63
Governance and Risk 704 460 243 - -
Information Senices 993 894 76 23
Office of CEO 1,248 1,248 - - -
Operations 5847 5216 151 455 25
Organisational Development 768 625 143
Planning 737 628 109 - -
Waste Management 1,391 755 456 180 -
Total operating staff 21,080 16,157 3,500 1,210 212
Capitalised labour 170
Apprentices and Trainees 597
External contracted employees 62
Other employee costs 852
Total staff 22,761
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Phone (03) 5871 9222 NRS 133 677
Fax (03) 5872 1567

Email info@moira.vic.gov.au

Mail PO Box 578, Cobram Vic 3643

Main Administration Centre
44 Station Street, Cobram

Service Centre
100 Belmore Street, Yarrawonga
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4. A WELL RUN COUNCIL

C050/19 - DETAILED DESIGN OF YARRAWONGA LIBRARY, EVENTS AND
PERFORMANCE PRECINCT

RECOMMENDATION

That Council:

1. Award contract C050/19 — Detailed Design of the Yarrawonga Library, Events
and Performance Precinct to N2SH Pty Ltd.

2. Authorise the Chief Executive Officer to sign and seal the contract documents.

1. Executive Summary

Moira Shire Council invited submissions for the design and preparation of tender
specifications to construct the proposed Yarrawonga Library, Events and Performance
Precinct.

Following the initial evaluation, the two highest scoring tenderers were invited to make a
presentation of their proposal to the Evaluation Panel.

After consideration of the submissions and subsequent presentations, the Panel
recommends that contract C050/19 be awarded to N2SH Pty Ltd.

2.  Background and Options
Contract C050/19 is a lump sum contract with completion expected within 24 weeks.

The project will occur in stages which include the provision of cost estimates and
indicative program, delivery of the design and finally tender documentation for
construction. Support for the construction phase of the project is also a component of the
works.

Advertising

The tender was advertised for approximately 6 weeks in the following media as well as
Council’'s website. Submissions closed 6 May 2020.

Paper Date
TenderSearch 28 March 2020
The Border Malil 28 March 2020
Shepparton News 31 March 2020
Cobram Courier 1 April 2020
Numurkah Leader 1 April 2020
Yarrawonga Chronicle 1 April 2020

Receipt of Tenders
16 Submissions were received.

Supervision
Superintendent — General Manager Community

Moira Shire Council Page 101 of 121



COMMUNITY ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING
OFFICER REPORTS FOR DETERMINATION WEDNESDAY, 24 JUNE 2020

FILE NO: C050/19 ITEM NO: 9.31
4. A WELL RUN COUNCIL

C050/19 - DETAILED DESIGN OF YARRAWONGA LIBRARY, EVENTS AND

PERFORMANCE PRECINCT (cont'd

Evaluation Panel Membership

The Panel consisted of the staff in the following positions who independently evaluated the
submissions:

General Manager Community

Manager Construction and Assets

Community Services Officer

CEO Goulburn Valley Regional Library Corporation

The Procurement Coordinator moderated the tender evaluation.

Non-conforming tenders
No tender was considered to be non-conforming.

Tender Evaluation
The following evaluation criteria and weightings applied to the tender:

Evaluation Criteria Evaluation
Weighting
Price 40%
Track Record 20%
Skills and Resources 20%
Contribution to Local Economy 10%
Management of Schedules 5%
Compliance with Specification 5%

The presentations were weighted at an additional 10% for the two tenderers selected. A
summary of the evaluation is provided in the confidential attachment.

3. Financial Implications
The 2019/20 budget contains sufficient funds.

4. Risk Management

To minimise the risks associated with the works under contract, the following
contract conditions are included:

e The contract is governed and construed by the Australian Standard AS4122-2010 —
General Conditions of Contract for Consultants.

o The successful contractor is to be the holder of public liability insurance with a
minimum coverage of $10 million and professional indemnity with a minimum
coverage of $5 million.

¢ All on-site personnel are required to undertake a Moira Shire Council site induction.

5. Internal and External Consultation

The tender was advertised on Council’'s TenderSearch website, The Border
Mail, Shepparton News and the local newspapers.

The Manager Assets and Construction, General Manager Community, and General
Manager Infrastructure approved the tender documentation.
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4. A WELL RUN COUNCIL

C050/19 - DETAILED DESIGN OF YARRAWONGA LIBRARY, EVENTS AND

PERFORMANCE PRECINCT (cont'd

6. Regional Context

This project contributes to the strategic objective of continuing to maintain and provide
facilities and services that our community value and need. Once completed, the
Yarrawonga Library will be operated by Goulburn Valley Regional Library Corporation.

7. Council Plan Strategy

The processes undertaken to advertise, evaluate and award this contract demonstrate the
Council Plan objective of good governance.

8. Legislative / Policy Implications

The tender process was undertaken in accordance with the requirements of the section
186 of the Local Government Act and Council’s adopted Procurement Policy.

9. Environmental Impact

The project requires certain environmental objectives to be included in the design
including a passive solar design, solar hot water, natural lighting, zoned heating and
cooling, reverse cycle air conditioning and where possible, the carbon footprint of the
building and its operations to be minimised.

10. Conflict of Interest Considerations
No conflicts of interest were declared.

11. Conclusion

The recommendation is to award contract C055/19 — Detailed Design of the Yarrawonga
Library, Events and Performance Precinct to N2SH Pty Ltd.

Attachments

1 Yarrwonga Library\Detailed design eval\C05019 - Detailed Design of the Yarrawonga
Library - APPENDIX A - printed in separate document
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4. A WELL RUN COUNCIL

C022/17 - PROVISION FOR ASSET MAINTENANCE PANEL - PART C, F(B)
AND H REFRESH

RECOMMENDATION

That Council;

1.  Award the refresh of panel contract C022/17 — Asset Maintenance Parts C, F(b)
and H to:

Part C Tree Maintenance
e Arbor Dynamics Pty Ltd
e Carters Tree Services Pty Ltd

Part F(b) Refrigeration Mechanics
o Airmaster Australia Pty Ltd

Part H Specialised Drainage Services

o Cleanaway Co Pty Ltd
Drainflow Solutions Pty Ltd
Rangedale Drainage & Industrial Services Pty Ltd
Gavlex Pty Ltd t/a RSP Environmental Services
Total Drain Cleaning Services Pty Ltd

2. Authorise the Chief Executive Officer to sign and seal the contract documents.

1. Executive Summary

Moira Shire Council refreshed panel contract C022/17 to seek additional contractors for
Part C Tree Maintenance, add Part F (b) Refrigeration Mechanics and Part H Specialised
Drainage Services to the panel.

After consideration of the submissions, including price and specification requirements, the
evaluation panel recommends that 8 tenderers be added to Contract C022/17. Please
refer to Appendix A for further information.

2. Background and Options

In 2017, Moira Shire Council invited submissions for the creation of a panel of contractors
to provide trade cervices for scheduled and urgent maintenance of Council assets.

The panel provides a range of trade services to Council including concreting, tree
maintenance, building maintenance, plumbing and gas fitting, electrical and painting
services.

Tenderers were able to make submissions for each or any separable part. The separable
parts of the original 2017 tender were:

Part A Mandatory Information (to be completed by ALL tenderers)
Part B Concreting

Part C Tree Maintenance

Part D Building Maintenance

Part E Plumbing and Gas Fitting

Part F Electrical
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C022/17 - PROVISION FOR ASSET MAINTENANCE PANEL - PART C, F(B)
AND H REFRESH (cont'd

Part G Painting

At the 23 August 2017 meeting, Council resolved to appoint 42 contractors for an initial
term of 2 years with the option to extend in single periods of 2 years to a maximum
contract period of 6 years (2+2+2).

Contractors on the current panel remain and were not required to re-submit a tender
unless they wished to make a submission for Part F (b) or Part H.

The range of services sought under Part C — Tree Maintenance includes stump removal
and grinding, elevated platform work, power line clearance and traffic management.

The new Part F (b) Refrigeration Mechanics provides a range of additional services
including the removal and installation of air conditioners and new Part H Specialised
Drainage Services provides specialised plumbing technology such as CCTV inspections,
pipe relining and hydro excavation.

To align with the existing contract term, the initial term of these parts will expire 31 August
2021. Upon mutual agreement there will be provision to extend the Contract for a further
two-year period.

Date of Public Notice

Paper Date

The Border Mall 4 April 2020
Shepparton News 7 April 2020
Cobram Courier 8 April 2020
Numurkah Leader 8 April 2020
Yarrawonga Chronicle 8 April 2020
TenderSearch 4 April 2020

Submissions closed 13 May 2020.

Receipt of Tenders
A total of 9 submissions were received. Refer to Appendix A for more information.

Supervision
Superintendent - Manager Operations.
Superintendent Representative — Superintendent Parks and Town Maintenance

Panel Membership
Staff in the following positions independently evaluated the submissions:

e Superintendent Parks and Town Maintenance
e Superintendent Works and Services
e Assets Technical Officer

The Procurement Coordinator moderated the tender evaluation.

Tender Evaluation
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C022/17 - PROVISION FOR ASSET MAINTENANCE PANEL - PART C, F(B)
AND H REFRESH (cont'd

The following evaluation criteria and weightings were used:

Evaluation Criteria Evaluation
Weighting

Price 40%

Compliance with Specification 20%

Skills and Resources 10%

Track Record 10%

Contribution to Local Economy 10%

Management of Schedules 10%

In addition to the above weightings, a 70% cut off score was applied to determine which
submissions met the requirements.

Non-conforming tenders
One tenderer for Part C Tree Maintenance was considered to be non-conforming due to not
having qualifications as required under clause 1.8 of the Invitation to Tender.

3. Financial Implications
Engaging contractors from the panel is funded within departmental operational budgets.

4, Risk Management

Tenderers addressed risk management issues as part of the tender, additional risks will
be assessed on an individual project basis.

5. Internal and External Consultation

The public tender was advertised on Council’'s TenderSearch website, The Border Mail,
Shepparton News and the local papers.

The Assets Technical Officer, Coordinator Facilities Maintenance, Manager Operations
and General Manager Infrastructure approved the tender documentation.

6. Regional Context

A 10% weighting based on a tenderer’s contribution to the local economy is applied to the
evaluation.

7. Council Plan Strategy

The Council Plan addresses the need for a well-run Council by implementing a
transparent, engaging and accountable governance structure for current and future
generations. The processes undertaken to award the contract meet the legislative and
policy requirements relating to procurement and tendering.

8. Legislative / Policy Implications

The tender process was undertaken in accordance with the requirements of the section
186 of the Local Government Act and Council’s adopted Procurement Policy.
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C022/17 - PROVISION FOR ASSET MAINTENANCE PANEL - PART C, F(B)
AND H REFRESH (cont'd

9. Environmental Impact

There were no environmental implications relating to the tender process. Environmental
risks will be assessed on an individual project basis.

10. Conflict of Interest Considerations
There was no conflict of interest declared for this tender evaluation process.

11. Conclusion

After consideration of the submissions, including price and specification requirements, the
evaluation panel recommends that 8 tenderers be included on panel contract C022/17.

Attachments

1 C022/17 - Provision for Asset Maintenance - Refresh - APPENDIX A (Confidential) -
printed in separate document
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4. A WELL RUN COUNCIL

C061/19 - ANNUAL RURAL LINE MARKING PROGRAM

RECOMMENDATION

That Council:

1. Award contract C061/19 — Annual Rural Line Marking Program to Head of
Transport, Victoria t/a Sprayline.

2. Authorise the Chief Executive Officer to sign and seal the contract documents.

1. Executive Summary

Moira Shire Council invited submissions from suitably qualified organisations or
individuals for the provision of line and road marking services throughout the
municipality’s rural road network.

After consideration of the submissions, the tender evaluation panel recommends that
contract C061/19 be awarded to the Head of Transport, Victoria t/a Sprayline.

2. Background and Options

Contract C061/19 is a schedule of rates contract.

The contract has an initial term of 1 year commencing from the date of contract
execution. Upon mutual agreement the contract may be extended by single periods of 12
months to a maximum contract period of three years (1+1+1).

Date of Public Notice

Paper Date

TenderSearch 25 April 2020
The Border Mall 25 April 2020
Shepparton News 28 April 2020
Cobram Courier 29 April 2020
Numurkah Leader 29 April 2020
Yarrawonga Chronicle 29 April 2020

Submissions closed 20 May 2020.

Receipt of Tenders
6 Submissions were received.

Supervision

Superintendent — Manager Operations
Superintendent Representative — Superintendent Works and Services

Panel Membership
Staff in the following positions independently evaluated the submissions:

e Manager Operations
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C061/19 - ANNUAL RURAL LINE MARKING PROGRAM (cont'd)

e Superintendent Works and Services
e Superintendent Parks and Town Maintenance

The Procurement Coordinator moderated the tender evaluation.

Non-conforming tenders
No submission was considered to be non-conforming.

Tender Evaluation
The following evaluation criteria and weightings were used:

Evaluation Criteria Evaluation
Weighting
Price 30%
Track Record 20%
Skills and Resources 20%
Management of Schedules 10%
Compliance with Specification 10%
Contribution to Local Economy 10%

3. Financial Implications

The schedule of rates provided by the recommended tenderer applied to the indicative
annual program is within the approved budget.

4. Risk Management

To minimise the risks associated with the works under contract, the following
conditions must be met:

e The successful contractor is to be the holder of public liability insurance
with a minimum coverage of $20 million.

¢ All on-site personnel are required to undertake a Moira Shire Council site
induction.

e Contract security is required to be taken from the Contractor in the form
of retention.

e Works under contract are to comply with the VIC Roads Standard
Sections 710 — Fixing Raised Pavement Markers and 721 — Pavement
Markers.

5. Internal and External Consultation

The tender was advertised on Council’'s TenderSearch website, The Border
Mail, Shepparton News and the local newspapers.

The Superintendent Works and Services, Manager Operations and General Manager
Infrastructure approved the tender documentation.

6. Regional Context

This project contributes to the strategic objective of continuing to maintain and provide
facilities and services that our community value and need.
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C061/19 - ANNUAL RURAL LINE MARKING PROGRAM (cont'd)

7.  Council Plan Strategy

The Council Plan addresses the need for a well-run Council by implementing a
transparent, engaging and accountable governance structure for current and future
generations. The processes undertaken to award the contract meet the legislative and
policy requirements relating to procurement and tendering.

8. Legislative / Policy Implications

The tender process was undertaken in accordance with the requirements of the section
186 of the Local Government Act and Council’s adopted Procurement Policy.

9. Environmental Impact

Section 1.35 of the specification stipulates the contractor's environmental responsibilities
and will form part of the contract.

10. Conflict of Interest Considerations
There was no conflict of interest declared for this tender evaluation process.

11. Conclusion

The recommendation is to award contract C061/19 — Annual Rural Line Marking Program
to the Head of Transport, Victoria t/a Sprayline.

Attachments

1 C061/19 - Annual Rural Line Marking Program - APPENDIX A - printed in separate
document
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PETITION - SEALING OF INVERNESS ROAD, INVERGORDON

RECOMMENDATION

That Council;

1.  Conduct a survey of the owners of property abutting Inverness Road between
Katamatite Shepparton Road and Marungi Road, Invergordon, to determine the owners’
willingness to support 50% contributions towards cost for a dust suppressant seal
treatment as outlined in Option 1 in accordance with Council’s Special Rates and
Charges Policy.

2. Undertake traffic counts to determine the traffic usage on Inverness Road, and,

3.  Thank the signatories of the petition for their work and advise the first mentioned
author of the petition of Council’s decision.

1. Executive Summary

A petition has been received regarding the upgrade of Inverness Road between
Katamatite Shepparton Road and Marungi Road, Invergordon, to a sealed standard.

Seal treatment options available include:
e Option 1 — Dust Suppressant Seal Treatment
e Option 2 — Full sealed pavement Construction

With Option 1, Council has set a precedence to seek 50% contribution towards costs
from abutting landowners for dust suppressant seal treatments on rural roads. Council
may elect to implement a Special Charge Scheme to seek the 50% contributions from
abutting landowners.

The process that is outlined in the Local Government Act and widely used for retrofitting
infrastructure to developed areas is the Special Charge Scheme. Council could construct
the infrastructure and the costs would be distributed amongst the abutting property
owners as per the legislation and Council Policy.

Council has a well-established process to determine if there is sufficient support to
provide a constructed sealed road, and it is recommended that the abutting property
owners be asked about a Scheme for construction of a dust suppressant seal treatment
for Inverness Road in accordance with Council’s Policy and procedures.

2.  Background and Options

a. Petition

A petition with 107 signatures has been received from abutting landowners in Inverness
Road and surrounding district, to have Inverness Road between Katamatite Shepparton
Road and Marungi Road upgraded from an unsealed gravel road to a sealed road
standard. Their request is based on the road being used more frequently by trucks
transporting hay and cattle and becoming extremely dusty. The petition was tabled at the
Ordinary Council Meeting held on 27 May 2020.

b. Condition and use of the road

Inverness Road is classed as a Rural Residential Access Road under the Council’'s Road
Hierarchy. The road is constructed with hill gravel to a width of 6metres. Total length is
4.935km
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The road is approved for use by school buses, milk tankers and B-Doubles. Traffic counts
are currently underway to determine traffic volumes.

There are 24 properties abutting the length of the road with 8 houses within close
proximity of the road.

C. Options of Road Sealing Treatments

Option 1 Dust Suppressant Seal

This option involves the application of a dust suppressant seal treatment over the existing
road base to a sealed width of 7.2metres. The existing road base will need some shaping
and have additional hill gravel added to widen the existing pavement width to 7.2m to
allow for 2-way traffic passing each other.

Total estimated cost for the dust suppressant seal is $523,000 Ex GST.

Option 2 Full Sealed Pavement Construction

This option involves strengthening and widening the existing road pavement to a width of
7.2m with a pavement overlay using crushed rock and applying a 2-coat seal treatment.
This treatment has the benefit of achieving a minimum 20-year life cycle for the road
pavement. Whereas the dust suppressant seal treatment has a life expectancy of around
10 years and only has a single seal coat.

Total estimated cost for the dust suppressant seal is $902,000 Ex GST.

3. Financial Implications

Council’s capital works budget for 2020/21 financial year has been adopted by Council at
its June 2020 Budget Meeting. Unless additional funding becomes available during the
financial year via funding grants, the works for both options will be considered for
inclusion in the 2021/22 capital works budget.

Option 1 Dust Suppressant Seal Treatment Funding options

Council has the option to either fully fund the works but is subject to availability of council
funds or external funding grants. However, given council’s current priorities for funded
projects, Council may be reluctant to fund the full amount in the short term.

The alternative is that Council seek co-contributions from the abutting landowners to
expedite the works as a priority. Council has set a precedence in seeking contributions
from benefitting abutting land owners based on a value of 50% of the works cost for
previous dust suppression works on rural roads and urban streets. However, the vast
majority of the landowners would need to agree to contribute towards costs prior to any
works proceeding.

Cost per landowner for both sides of the road reserve is estimated at $26.50 per metre
length of property frontage. For example, a property with a 500m frontage would need to
contribute a total amount of $13,250 Ex GST.

The Local Government Act provides legislation that enables Council to install
infrastructure and then to pass the costs of any special bengfit to the owners of adjacent
land. The legislation is well known, often used and is the cornerstone of fitting
infrastructure to areas that have been developed without complete infrastructure.
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PETITION - SEALING OF INVERNESS ROAD, INVERGORDON (cont'd)

Therefore, Council can elect to recover costs from abutting property owners under its
Special Rates and Charges Policy.

Council’s Policy’s for Special Rates and Charges allows for contributions to be paid by
the following options:

« In full within 30 days after the date of issue of the naotice; or

* Quarterly installments over a period of years as set by Council for each scheme, but not
exceeding 10 years; and

* Applications for relief or assistance due to hardship will be considered in accordance
with Council’'s Rates and Charges Policy.

Option 2 Full Sealed Pavement Construction

Council in the past has not sought co-contributions from abutting landowners for upgrade
of rural roads to full sealed construction due to the cost impost on the landowners.
Therefore, the only option is for Council to fully fund the works or seek at least seek
partial or full funding from an external Grant Funding Organisation.

4, Risk Management

There are financial risks to Council with construction works and with undertaking the
Special Charge Scheme process. These risks are mitigated by ensuring that Council’s
Special Charge Scheme Policy is followed along with the requirements set out in relevant
legislation.

There are risks, with regard to the perceptions schemes may create within the
community. Some property owners may believe that the Council’'s General Rate covers
the cost of provision of new infrastructure, whereas this is not the case. The General Rate
is to cover services that are available generally within the community. Services such as
the provision of new roads that benefit some property owners, that is, those that receive
special benefit are provided by Special Charge Schemes.

5. Internal and External Consultation

This report is regarding a consultation process. If Council were to proceed with a scheme
extensive additional consultation would be required with the scheme contributors.

Schemes are not popular because they result in property owners having to pay for the
special benefit that they receive. The consultation regarding schemes needs be mindful
of this fact, and also needs to ensure that property owners are provided with information
that is correct, up to date and that should any scheme be considered for implementation,
Council is required to undertake a legal process that is lengthy and time consuming.

6. Regional Context

Inverness Road serves as an access road for local residents, dairy & beef farmers and
farmers supplying hay fodder. The road provides direct access to the Katamatite
Shepparton Road and the Invergordon community.

7.  Council Plan Strategy

The request for the sealing of Inverness Road is linked to the Council Plan’s Strategy 1 —
“A great place to live” under the strategic action “Continuing to maintain and provide
facilities and services that our community values and need”.

8. Legislative / Policy Implications

Council has a Policy with respect to the installation of new road infrastructure — the
Special Rates and Charges Policy. However, it does not cover contribution amounts for
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dust suppressant seal treatments. Instead Council has relied on set precedence for past
similar requests for dust suppressant seal treatments for rural roads in asking abutting
property owners to contribute up to 50% towards costs.

Any special charge scheme would be developed in accordance with the relevant
provisions of the Local Government Act 1989, Ministerial Guidelines and Council’ Special
Rates and Charges Policy 2009. The procedure and limits to Council’s power to impose
a scheme are stipulated in the Local Government Act 1989.

9. Environmental Impact

Upgrading the road to a sealed surface will eliminate the dust problems that is being
experienced by the abutting residents and improve road safety for travelling motorists.

10. Conflict of Interest Considerations
There are no Officer conflicts of interest with respect to this report.

11. Conclusion

The abutting property owners in petition have requested that Council to have Inverness
Road upgraded from an unsealed road to a sealed road standard. It is recommended that
the abutting property owners be asked about their willingness to contribute 50% to the
cost of upgrading the road to a sealed road based on Option 1 — Dust Suppressant Seal
Treatment, via a questionnaire and that traffic counts be undertaken to determine the
amount and nature of the traffic on the road.

The results of the questionnaire and traffic counts will be reported to Council at a later
date.

Attachments
Nil
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RECOMMENDATION

That Council;

1. Seek to incorporate the Retail Policy Framework Background Analysis and Options
Reports (2017) into the Moira Planning Scheme at Clause 72.08 — Background
Documents.

2. Seek authorisation from the Minister for Planning to prepare a Planning Scheme
Amendment pursuant to Section 8A of the Planning and Environment Act 1987.

3. Request the Minister for Planning under Section 20(4) of the Act to exempt himself
from the requirements of Section 17,18 & 19 of the Act in relation to the exhibition
and notice of a planning scheme amendment.

1. Executive Summary

A Retail Policy Framework for Cobram and Yarrawonga was prepared in 2017 providing
analysis and options for future commercial development. Council subsequently adopted
the report at its meeting on 26 July 2017.

In order for these reports to have a level of statutory force in the consideration of planning
proposal, it is prudent to incorporate the reports into the Planning Scheme as Background
Documents.

A planning scheme amendment is required, therefore authorisation should be sought
from the Minister for Planning and request an exempt from public exhibition and notice,
given that the reports had undergone a public exhibition process.

2. Background and Options

Council at its meeting held on 26 July 2017 adopted the Cobram and Yarrawonga Retail
Policy Framework Background Analysis and Options Reports.

The Retail Policy Framework for Cobram and Yarrawonga was aimed to assess the level
and form of the existing and prospective retail market demand with a view to determine:
¢ the drivers of change,
¢ the forms of development that are likely to be most viable leading into the future,
and,
¢ the prospects for growing the employment base of the two town centres.

To inform and assist with the preparation of the Retail Policy Framework for Cobram and
Yarrawonga, consultation was undertaken on two instances; four open day sessions in
November 2016 and formal public consultation for three weeks in July 2017.

Six submissions were received. The submissions were generally in agreement with the
Retail Policy Framework for Cobram and Yarrawonga.

The options for these reports are:
e Remain as policy (Council) documents that sit outside the Planning Scheme;
¢ Incorporate the documents into the Planning Scheme as Background Documents
that would assist in informing any planning scheme amendments, the Municipal
Planning Strategy, local planning policies and any other relevant planning matter.
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3. Financial Implications

There are fees and charges associated with a planning scheme amendment which are
accommodated within budget.

4. Risk Management

There are no known risks likely to arise with respect to the incorporation of these strategic
reports into the planning scheme

5. Internal and External Consultation

Prior to the adoption of these reports, external consultation occurred in November 2016
(public open days and walk through interviews with some shop owners) and July 2017
(formal three week public consultation process), whereby submissions were received that
broadly supported the findings and directions within the retail policy framework.

More recently these reports formed part of the combined planning scheme amendment
C88 and planning permit 52017204 (Cobram Village) process in Council’s consideration
and the Planning Panel’s examination of the planning elements surrounding the proposal.

6. Regional Context

The town centres of Cobram and Yarrawonga have significant opportunities for growth
and to attract patronage and investment from even surrounding Shires, however the
towns are only supportive towns to the 5 major towns within the Hume Region

7.  Council Plan Strategy

The objective of the Strategy 2 - A thriving local economy is:
e We will support local businesses and attract new investment to generate
employment opportunities

The retail policy framework meets this objective.

8. Legislative / Policy Implications

To incorporate these reports into the planning scheme requires an amendment to the
Planning Scheme. The Planning and Environment Act 1987 provides the statutory
process to amend the planning scheme.

As these reports have already been subject to a public exhibition process, it would be
reasonable to request the Minister under Section 20(4) of the Act to exempt himself from
the requirements of Section of Section 17,18 & 19 of the Act in relation to the exhibition
and notice of a planning scheme amendment.

9. Conflict of Interest Considerations
There are no officer conflicts interest to consider.

10. Conclusion

When strategic planning reports are prepared that informs of future planning and
development, it is normal practice to include these into the planning scheme, thus
providing statutory weight to rely on when deciding on planning proposals or requests.

In this particular case, the Council only decided to adopt the Cobram and Yarrawonga
Retail Policy Framework Background Analysis and Options Reports.
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RETAIL POLICY FRAMEWORK FOR COBRAM AND YARRAWONGA (cont'd)

The next stage to incorporate them in the planning scheme has not occurred to date,

therefore it is now prudent to do so.

An amendment to the Moira Planning Scheme is required, therefore Council should seek
Authorisation from the Minister and request to exempt himself from the exhibition and

notice requirements.

Attachments
Nil
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NOTICE OF MOTION: CR PETER MANSFIELD

TAKE NOTICE that at the Council Meeting to be held on 24 June 2020, it is my intention
to move the following motion:

That Moira Shire Council accept asset responsibility for the bridge across Jacksons
Creek Bundalong being proposed by the Bundalong Action Group (BAG) on the condition
that:

e The design, construction and installation being funded by Goulburn Murray Water
(GMW) in conjunction with BAG

e The project securing the necessary statutory approvals

e The design and engineering certification of the bridge being to Councils satisfaction

e BAG undertaking routine maintenance on the approved decking to ensure its
longevity

e The Councils involvement in the project is limited to the bridge with land management
remaining with GMW

CR PETER MANSFIELD

Date: 3 June 2020
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URGENT GENERAL BUSINESS

Clause 60 of Council’s “Meeting Procedures Local Law 2017 states:
60. Urgent general business

1) Councillors must provide an outline of the matters to be considered before Council can
accept the motion to consider urgent business. The outline must demonstrate how the matter
meets the criteria for urgent business.

2) Urgent business can only be admitted by resolution of Council
3) Urgent business must not be admitted as urgent business unless
a) It relates to or arises out of a matter which has arisen since distribution of the agenda
b) Is manifestly urgent
¢) Is material to the function of Council
d) Requires an urgent council resolution
e) Is otherwise determined by the CEO.

4) Only the mover of an urgency motion may speak to the motion before it is put.

Moira Shire Council Page 119 of 121



QUESTIONS FROM THE PUBLIC GALLERY ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING
WEDNESDAY, 24 JUNE 2020

FILE NO: VARIOUS ITEM NO: 15

QUESTIONS FROM THE PUBLIC GALLERY

Clause 61 of Council’s “Meeting Procedures Local Law 2017 states:

61. Question Time

The Council will hold a Public Question Time of up to 30 minutes duration at each Ordinary Meeting, to
enable members of the public to receive answers to questions previously submitted for consideration, and
if the submitted questions are dealt with in less than the 30 minute period, the Chair can invite questions
from the floor.

1) At every ordinary meeting of the Council a maximum of 30 minutes may be allocated to enable
members of the public to submit questions to Council.

2) The time allocated may be extended by unanimous resolution of Council.

3) Sub-clause (1) does not apply during any period when the Council has resolved to close a meeting in
respect of a matter under section 89(2) of the Act.

4) To assist the accurate recording of minutes and addressing any questions that may require written
response or follow up, the Chief Executive Officer may require questions to be submitted in writing.

5) No person may submit more than two (2) questions at any one (1) meeting.

6) The Chairperson or member of Council staff nominated by the Chairperson may read a question to
those present.

7) No question must be so read unless:
a) the person asking the same is in the gallery at the time it is due to be read; and
b) the person asking the question reads the same when called upon by the Chairperson to do so.
¢) A guestion may be disallowed by the Chairperson if it:
d) relates to a matter outside the duties, functions and powers of Council;
e) is defamatory, indecent, abusive, offensive, irrelevant, trivial or objectionable in language or
substance;
f) deals with a subject matter already answered,;
g) is aimed at embarrassing a Councillor or a member of Council staff;
h) relates to personnel matters;
i) relates to the personal hardship of any resident or ratepayer;
j) relates to industrial matters;
k) relates to contractual matters;
) relates to proposed developments;
m) relates to legal advice;
n) relates to matters affecting the security of Council property; or
0) relates to any other matter which Council considers would prejudice Council or any person.

8) The Chairperson may request a Councillor or member of Council staff to respond, if possible, to the
question.

9) Councillor or member of Council staff may require a question to be put on notice until the next Ordinary
meeting, at which time the question must be answered, or elect to submit a written answer to the person
asking the question.

10) A Councillor or member of Council staff may advise Council that it is his or her opinion that the reply
to a question should be given in a meeting closed to members of the public. The Councillor or member of
Council staff must state briefly the reason why the reply should be so given and, unless Council resolves
to the contrary, the reply to such question must be so given.
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ITEM NO: 16

MEETING ADJOURNMENT

RECOMMENDATION

That the meeting be adjourned for 10 minutes.

RECOMMENDATION

That the meeting be resumed.

RECOMMENDATION

That pursuant to the provisions of the Local Government Act 2020 (the Act), the meeting will
now be closed to members of the public to enable the meeting to discuss matters in items17.1
and 17.2 which the Council may, pursuant to the provisions of Section 66 (2) of the Act resolve
to be considered in closed session.

RECOMMENDATION

in open session.

That pursuant to Section 66 (1) of the Local Government Act 2020, Council resolve to continue

RECOMMENDATION

That the recommendations of the "Closed" Meeting of Council be adopted.
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